
 
 
 

Wirral Schools Forum 
 
Date: Tuesday, 25 September 2012 
Time: 
 

6.00 pm 

Venue: Council Chamber, Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Sue Ashley 
Tel: 0151 666 4579 
e-mail: SueAshley@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
1. ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR  
 
2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 12) 
 
3. MATTERS ARISING  
 
4. FINAL DSG CALCULATION 2012-13 (Pages 13 - 14) 
 
5. MAINSTREAM SCHOOL FUNDING CONSULTATION (Pages 15 - 

30) 
 
6. FUNDING FOR PUPILS WITH HIGH NEEDS CONSULTATION 

(Pages 31 - 50) 
 
7. SCHOOL REDUNDANCY NUMBERS AND COSTS (Pages 51 - 54) 
 
8. SCHOOL INTERVENTION BUDGET (Pages 55 - 58) 
 
9. LACES UPDATE (Pages 59 - 62) 
 
10. HOME EDUCATION SERVICE (Pages 63 - 64) 
 
11. FUNDING HIGH NEEDS STUDENTS AGED 16-24 UPDATE (Pages 

65 - 66) 
 
12. PROVISION OF INSURANCE SERVICES TO SCHOOLS (Pages 67 - 

68) 
 

Public Document Pack



13. BREECH OF CENTRAL EXPENDITURE LIMIT 2012-13 (Pages 69 - 
70) 

 
14. FORUM MEMBERSHIP UPDATE (Pages 71 - 72) 
 
15. FORUM TRAINING (Pages 73 - 74) 
 
16. SCHOOL FORUM REGULATIONS 2012, GUIDANCE AND 

EXPLANATORY MEMO (Pages 75 - 88) 
 
17. SUMMARY OF SCHOOL FINANCE REGULATIONS 2013 (Pages 89 

- 96) 
 
18. EFA LETTER TO FORUMS  WITH CONTACT DETAILS (Pages 97 - 

98) 
 
19. WORK PLAN (Pages 99 - 100) 
 
 
 



WIRRAL SCHOOLS’ FORUM 
 

3 JULY 2012 
 

MINUTES 
 
Present  R. Longster (Chair) 
 
   Schools Group 
 
   A Baird  M Jackson  

M Brown   D Kitchin 
E Cogan  M Kophamel 
B Cummings  C Mann 
S Dainty  J Owens 
P Dixon  S Peach 
K Frost   S Wall 
N Greathead  J Weise 
C Hughes  G Zsapka 
L Ireland   

 
   Non-Schools Group 

J Kenny  S McNamara 
   B McGregor  M Potter 
   D McDonald  N Reilly 
  
In Attendance P Ashcroft  M Lightburn 

J Bevan  M Parkinson 
S Blevins  A Roberts 
Cllr W Clements C Warburton 
 

Apologies  S Ashley   S Davies  
I Cubbin   C Penn 

 
 
Andrew Roberts updated members on the current situation in Wirral Council.  David Armstrong 
has written to all schools explaining that he is now the acting Chief Executive and that Julia 
Hassall is acting Director of Children’s Services (DCS).  This is a short term arrangement until a 
new Chief Executive is appointed. 

 
Mark Parkinson updated members on interim arrangements following his departure at the end of 
July, responsibilities will be shared amongst the four Strategic Service Managers.  A request has 
been sent today for 2 headteacher secondments for the next academic year, one for schools 
improvement in primary schools and one for SEN. 

 
1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 The minutes of the last meeting were accepted as a true record. 
 
2 Matters Arising 
 All matters arising are covered on the agenda. 
 
3 Welfare Benefits Changes and Implications 

Andrew Roberts delivered his report on changes to the benefits system and the impact on free 
school meals.  He outlined the effect already seen by changes in Wirral to the administration of 
free school meals, and reported that whilst the FSM figure fluctuates regularly, it now seems to 
have settled at around 9,600.  The new Universal Credit system will not be able to be directly 
linked to free school meals, but the DfE recognise the importance of FSM and are working to 
resolve the issues with the change in the welfare system. 

 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



4 Hospital School Presentation 
Derek Kitchin gave a presentation on the work of Wirral Hospitals’ School and Home Education 
Service (copies of slides attached).  He outlined the main services covered, the challenges that 
pupils face and the outcomes that the school delivers. 

 
5 Consultation Papers – Changes to the Local Funding Formula and Funding High Needs 

Pupils 
Andrew Roberts summarised the consultation document included in the papers.  The consultation 
has been sent out to all schools for a response by the end of term.  A working party of the 
Schools’ Forum was formed to respond to the national DfE consultation and also to consider local 
changes.  The papers are included in this meeting are for awareness, the Forum is not being 
asked at this point to make any decisions. 
 
The timescales for the consultation are tight because local authorities are required to submit their 
new formulae to the DfE by the end of October. 
 
The main areas of change are: 
• a simplified formula 
• a single lump sum 
• the removal of a separate grants element (grants were mainstreamed a couple of years ago) 
• delegation of central budgets 
The DfE are insisting that these changes are made.  The MFG is seen as the mechanism to 
provide stability. 
 
This is an evolving area of work and the DfE are still making changes.  The consultation papers 
have been released this term because Wirral want to give schools enough time to consider the 
changes.  Further changes by the DfE at the end of last week include: 
• 6 bands for IDACI instead of the original 5 
• Increasing the upper limit for the lump sum to £200,000 
• Changes to the MFG calculation 
New information will be sent out to schools. 
 
In response to questions raised by members, Andrew Roberts confirmed that: 
• he had met with headteachers and held question and answer sessions. 
• a new consultation question would be circulated to schools about making the formula 

affordable and whether schools would prefer a capping or scaling approach. 
• the situation for 2015 is not yet clear.  There will be a new national formula for local 

authorities, but the DfE may choose to either keep the local formulae or calculate individual 
budgets for schools.  The decisions will not be taken in the near future and therefore cannot 
inform decisions on the current consultation. 

• the full consultation papers and appendices are available to download from Wescom 
 

Paul Ashcroft outlined the consultation on the changes to the SEN funding system.  The DfE 
intend to change the high needs funding system entirely.  Statemented children will be funded in 
the same way regardless of where they attend.  The new system must be in place by 2014, with 
transitional arrangements for 2013 only.  The new system will be £10,000 per place plus a local 
top-up per pupil.  The ‘plus’ element will be locally determined and schools will be consulted on 
this – it is likely to be complicated. 
 
Andre Baird acknowledged that the new system had its merits in providing equality of funding, but 
also raised a number of concerns: 
• Special Schools cannot de-delegate budgets such as Maternity costs.  Although they can 

pool voluntarily amongst special schools, this is not as economical as pooling across all 
schools 

• Clare Mount received specialist school funding which will not be protected for as long as in 
mainstream schools.  This is not fair or consistent.  Andrew Roberts confirmed that the money 
would stay in the high needs sector, and that he would need to look at how this was 
distributed. 

Page 2



• The monthly adjustments to top up funding for places gives schools no security in budgets or 
planning 

• Special schools are not in control of their own admissions, and therefore cannot influence the 
amount of funding they received under a place plus system 

 
Elaine Cogan thanked Andrew Roberts and his team for trying to maintain stability in budgets, 
particularly at a time of cuts in post-16 funding. 

 
6 Places in Specialist Provision 

Paul Ashcroft presented his paper on places in specialist SEN provision.  The paper outlined the 
proposed changes to place numbers and the reasons behind these.  The LA needs to negotiate 
place changes with the EFA this summer to take effect in the April 2013 budgets.  Most of these 
changes are included in the High Needs Formula consultation document. 
 
Resolved: 
(i) That the Forum noted and agreed the proposals in the funding consultation about future 
places in specialist provision: 
 (a) to reduce the number of places at Foxfield from 138 to 133 from April 2013 
 (b) to reduce the number of places at The Lyndale from 45 to 40 from April 2013 

(c) to increase the number of places at Gilbrook from 50 to 55 in September 2012 using 
the money from the closure of Brookdale base 
(d) to increase the number of places at Elleray Park School from 75 to 80 from April 2013 
(e) to close the moderate learning difficulties base at Rock Ferry from April 2013 

(ii) That the Forum supports the LA moving these proposals forward through Cabinet and 
with the EFA, unless the outcome of the funding consultation determines otherwise 
(iii) That Gilbrook School is commissioned to provide education from the 6th day of either a fixed-
term or permanent exclusion from September 2012. 

 
7 Gilbrook Base and Outreach 

Paul Ashcroft summarised his paper on the evaluation of Gilbrook School’s outreach service.  
The service aims to work with colleagues in primary schools to support the management of 
children with challenging behaviour in their own schools and to enable pupils with emotional and 
behavioural difficulties to be supported in their mainstream schools.  The service has been shown 
to be effective and well received by primary schools. 

 
Resolved: 
That the Forum noted the report. 

 
8 WASP Update 

Andrew Roberts gave an update on progress towards a delegated budget for WASP.  WASP 
must have a delegated budget by April 2013.  A management committee has been established 
and new operating procedures will be modelled this year.  Good progress is being made towards 
the April 2013 deadline. 

 
 Resolved: 

That the Forum noted and approved the arrangements made to implement a delegated budget at 
WASP. 

 
9 Schools Budget Outturn 2011-12 

Andrew Roberts presented the provisional outturn figures for 2011-12.  The figures are broadly 
the same as those reported in January and the use of reserves has been previously agreed. 
 
Resolved: 
That the Forum noted the report 

 
10 School Balances as at 31st March 2012 

Andrew Roberts gave a report on school balances.  The trend towards increased balances 
continues, both in Wirral and in other local authorities.  Schools were offered a note of caution in 

Page 3



having rising levels of uncommitted expenditure at a time when the local authority faces 
significant reductions. 
 
An error was noted in the summarised balances in section one of the report.  A revised table is 
included below: 
 

1. Summarised Balances 
 

School balances have increased to £11.8m at 31st March 2012.   This represents a year on 
year increase of £2.4m (25%) when Academies are excluded.   
 
 2010/11 

Balances 2011/12 Balances Increase 

Nursery £309,967 £334,601 £24,634 
Primary £5,100,764 £5,764,859 £664,095 
Secondary £2,516,513 £4,044,911 £1,528,398 
Special £1,449,940 £1,623,242 £173,302 
Total £9,377,184 £11,767,613 £2,390,429 
Academy Conversions 2,262,960   
Total £11,640,144   

 
 

Amended table from agenda item 10. 
 
 
Andre Baird commented that schools are cautious at a time of changes to the way they are 
funded and don’t want to risk looking to the LA to support deficit budgets in the future. 
 
Neville Reilly commented that the secondary school balances appear high at a time when staff 
are being made redundant, and was interested to know which schools had large balances and 
why.  Reserves should be for a rainy day to avoid redundancies. 
 
Elaine Cogan reminded members that the MFG applies to pre-16 budgets only, and that 
secondary schools with 6th forms needed to plan for falling post-16 budgets. 
 
Derek Kitchin commented that the requirement on schools to pick up 25% of redundancy costs 
means that schools need to plan ahead so that they don’t fall into a cycle of redundancies.  The 
reason the cap on balances was removed was to allow schools to prepare for the transition in 
funding as part of a long-term plan. 

 
11 School Redundancies Update 
 Sue Blevins gave a verbal report on school redundancies: 

§ The amount spent on redundancies has gone down this year but is likely to go up again 
next year 

§ There has been a significant increase in the number of schools with 6th forms with budget 
difficulties 

§ 9 schools lost a total of  46 non-teaching staff through 21 voluntary redundancies and 25 
compulsory redundancies 

§ 5 schools lost a total of 16 teaching staff through 14 voluntary redundancies and 2 
compulsory redundancies 

§ The total cost of redundancies is: 
Total LA Cost (75%)  £395,000 
Total School Cost (25%) £126,500 
This is for maintained schools only and does not include academies 

 
12 Final DSG Calculation and Central Limit 

Andrew Roberts withdrew this item from the agenda.  The report was to cover two items, the 
breach of the central limit and the final DSG Settlement for 2012-13. An error has been identified 

Page 4



in the Early Years Census amounting to £1.5million.  The LA is currently discussing the position 
with the DfE. 

   
This report will be presented in September when the outcome of discussions should be known. 

 
13 Forum Membership 

Andrew Roberts explained changes required to Forum membership from September based on 
pupil numbers.  There is significant turnover in the membership and the Forum is seeking 
nominations. 
Ken Frost commented that there is a lack of awareness amongst governors about what is 
involved in being on the Forum, and therefore it is difficult to get nominations.  He requested a 
short explanation be sent out so that governors could make informed nominations.  Andrew 
Roberts will include an explanation with the letter requesting nominations. 
 
Mike Potter will step down as the 16-19 representative and will seek a replacement. 
 
Sandra Wall will retire at the end of this year so there will be a vacancy for another secondary 
governor representative. 

 
14 Best Practice Review of the Role of Schools’ Forums – Executive Summary 

Andrew Roberts gave a summary of the best practice review of schools’ forums.  The 
recommendations include: 

§ Improved training 
§ Reviewing the remit and roles of working groups 
§ Better communication 
§ LA briefings 

Andrew Roberts advised that briefing sessions had been held with heads groups prior to the main 
Schools Forum meeting.  WASH confirmed that this was helpful in giving members the 
opportunity to discuss agenda items and feed their views forward. 
 
The Chair asked members to look at the recommendations and bring forward their ideas.  
Andrew Roberts advised that the Forum has a budget of £10,000 for these activities. 

 
15 Draft Schools Forum Regulations 

Andrew Roberts summarised the DfEs proposed changes to the Schools Forums regulations, 
and advised that the changes would need to be in place by January 2013 when voting on the 
formula changes takes place. 
 
Mike Potter expressed concern around item 3, and felt that the 14-19 representative may have a 
view on the funding formula which they would want to be heard. 
 
Resolved (with 1 against and 3 abstentions): 
That in exceptional circumstances the Forum should be able to allow representatives other than 
schools, academy and PVI members to vote on the funding formula. 
Andrew Roberts will feed this view back to the EFA. 

 
16 Work Plan 
 The Forum work plan was summarised. 
 Dates for future meetings are: 
 Tuesday 25th September 2012 
 Wednesday 23rd January 2013 
 Wednesday 10th April 2013 
 
17 Any Other Business 
 The Chair thanked Mark Parkinson on behalf of the Forum for his contributions and support. 

The Chair thanked the governor representatives who will leave the Forum at the end of the 
academic year for their contributions. 

 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



����������	�
�	

������
��		��
�	���

��
�����
��������
������������





����
 !"#$" #% 

������

�	�������&
��		�

���'��
�'()�

����*��+)
,')�-�
��.�'�

�/-() ���
����

�'/�

�������+
���0���

� �������
'�
��*����&)
1���
��
����
�(���+
���/
��/��

/'����+)
'�*2�

� ���'����)�
���*����
�����+
�.�/)
3�*)'
���(���+
)���))
'4

���*�
"
-�����)5

� ���'����)�
���(�����
��/�))�'�)6
)����
�7�'�
�
���
��/

�'
*���)�
1���
)��''*)
4'�
��')�
1���
���)�
�))(�)�

� ����
,�
���
�')-���*
�������+
�*')�*2
*������
�**
*��
72

)�/�
������������
�'
-�'0���
)��/*�))�
-�'/-�

-���1�2)
7���
�'
��(����'��

�	������
������8

� ����))
�'
��(����'�
�'�(/���6
�4
(��7*�
�'
������

)��''*
4'�
/'��
����
%9
�'�)��(��0�
��2)�
���2
���

�����*��
�'
��(����'�
��
�'/��
��
��)-'�)�7�*��2�

� ��4����*
-�'��))6
������
4�'/
:'�)(*����&�
���''*)
���

��4���
7(�
����
:'�)(*����& *�����
���
)(7;���
�'

:+������-��+& 72
������������

� �'�+��
���/
�'�����'�)
��
"
�����*
���*��

� �'
/�������
�'����(��2
'4
��(����'�
1��*)�
'44
)��''*�

� ����
,�
���
�')-���*
�������+
�*')�*2
*������
�**
*��

72
)�/�
������������
�'
-�'0���
)��/*�))�
-�'/-�

-���1�2)
7���
�'
��(����'��

�	��
������	�
���<��

� �))�))/���
-*���/����
!
1���)
= >


� ��)���+
���
�))�))/���
'4
�
���*�&)
-)2��'*'+���*
"

�/'��'��*
���
�'+����0�
��0�*'-/����

� ��-'��
���
���'//������'�)
'4
����)�
)�����+��)�

� ���*��
���0���
����
3��*�
���
��/�*25
4���*��2

� ���
/���+�
 
.
�*�))�''/6
%.
-��/��2
%.
���'����2

� *�))�''/
�**'1)
)'/�
�'����(���'�
'4
��(����'��
7(�

-��/���*2�
�'
-�'0���
�
�*�))�''/
)�����+
�'
�**'1

'7)��0���'�
���
�))�))/���
�'
����
-*����

� ��4����*6
���'(+�
���*��
"
�����


��	��
�	���

Page 7



����*��+)
��
�����*
�')-���*)& ���''*

• ���+����
)��''*
+��*)
���
)��''*?�+�

�����+�
/(/)

• �@���
4���*����)
��
A��)�'� ��
,�/�)

�(��
�����

• �������+
(-
�'
���
7�2'��
7����
��

,�
���
A��)�'� ��
,�/�)

��(-�*)
1���
/�����*
�'�����'�)
����

/���
4(**?��/��
/���)����/
��(����'�

�/-'))�7*�

��(-�*)
4'�
1�'/
�����
���
)���'()

�'�����)
�7'(�
�����
-)2��'*'+���*�

�/'��'��*
���"'�
)'���*
1�**?7���+

��(-�*)
1�'
���
(��7*�
�'
������
)��''*

7(�
���
�'�
�'�)������
��(���)

�,�
�)
�'� �
)��''*
4'�
-(-�*)
1���

7���0�'(��*
�))(�)

,	����
��B�	�
�����

���2)���*
���*��
�))(�)�
*�����+
�'

��44��(*���)
����))��+
)��''*
3�C(�*����)

���D5
'�
/���������+
����������
�(�
�'

�����/���
"
�')-���*�)���'�

���2)���*
���*��
�))(�)
)(��
�)
��
"
��

���2)���*
���*��
�))(�)�
*�����+
�'

��44��(*���)
����))��+
)��''*
= 7���()�

'4
-)2��'*'+���*
���
��.���2
�))(�)

�������
72
�����
/���+�/���
"
����-��'�

������
	��
E	��8
��	���
���
=

� �����*
���*��
"
1�**
7���+
�))(�)
*�����+
�'

���+������
��.���2�
��-��))�'��
)�*4?���/�

�����+
��)'����)�
)(�����*
�������2�
	�
=

� ��*4?�/�+�
"
�������2
�))(�)
*�����+
�'
�������'�

7���+
���1�
�'
���/)�*0�)�
���7�*��2
�'
�'-�

1���
(��4'�/
"
��
"
�'//(��*
�����+
����

� ����
���+�
'4
-�'7��)6
�'�)��
)'(��)�
)/�**�

-�-���
4''��
1'��)�
'7;���)
���

� ��*4
�/�+�
���
�))(�)
'4
����-�����
��'(��

+�����
"
)�.(�*��2

������
	��
E	��8
��	���
���
3 5

Page 8



	?�	�A����E

�**
'4
�7'0�
���
7�
���+������
72
�'?
/'�7����2
=

���
4(�����
�����)�4���
���'(+�

�)-��+��) "
���
3�(��)���
�-����(/

��)'����5
= '�
�������
72
���
���
*���

'4
)(���))
��
��+�+��+
1���
'����)

*���)
�'
��-��))�'�
"
��.���2
'�
�����+

'(�
7���0�'(�)�

������+
�'
)'���*
"
�'//(������'�
���

�����? -���
��*���'�)��-
���
4�����)��-


��44��(*���)
3-�����0��
�)
:7(**2��+&5

A������)
�'
/���)����/
)��''*

/����������
���"'�
������+����'�

����+(�
��7*�)
F 9
�?&)
���*(���+
���
G

�����H

��'1
�.�*(���+
�*�������0�
(����(*(/
"

<'����'��*
4�'/
8��
)�'��)�


�,(�+��
'�
�7'0�
���
���������D
� :���))(��& 4�'/
8'0�
"
	4)��� "

8'0�����+
A'���)
��
�7'0�H

����))(��
'�
)�(����)
F 4(**
)�'-D

A������)
F ,()�
'��
4���*
)*���D

�I ��������
F ���(���'�)
��
�(/7��)

'4
)(--'��
)��44
F ��&)
"
����'�)

��������*
��'���"-��))(��
��
7���0�'(�


��(--'��

? �������+
/���'�)
? �	�

�	�
�������8
���

����<�����HHH

����)
/'��
-��))(���
���
:���+��

���0��& ? �����
/'��
)��'�+*2
���

C(���*2
�'
������(-���
*������+H

�����

�����)����/
)��''*)

�'//(���2
-������������)

����)

�E�
����
�'�+�
3��)���5

�E��

���1� ,'��)
3�*���
��25

��	
������
������
�	
,�H

Page 9



�	����8
����
�������

���
��0�*'-
���
/�������
�44����0�

-������)��-
1'����+
1���
-�����)

���
)(--'��
-�����)
���
��)-'��
�'

�����
����)
��
��+�+��+
-')���0�*2
1���

�����
���*�&)
*������+
���
��0�*'-/���

���
)(--'��
-�����)
���
��)-'��
�'

�����
����)
��
)()������+
���

��0�*'-��+
�����
-�������+
)��**)

���
-�'0���
����))�7*�
��4'�/���'��

�.-*�����'��
+(������
���
)�+�-')���+

��������
����

���1
+'0���/���
�������0�
F 4(**��
��/�

���1
)��''*
��2
J�K#
�'
 �K#
4'�
�**

-(-�*)
1���
������/���
����0����)

'44����
4�'/
 �K#
�'
L�##
-/�

�	44��
����0��(�**2
-��)'��*�)��
7�)��

'�
)-���4��
����)
'4
����
-(-�*
F
�(�����
-�2)���*"/����*"�/'��'��*

���*��

	��	���

��2)���*
���
/����*
���*��
�/-�'0�/���
���'(+�6

� ���(���'�
'4
��.���2
"
��-��))�'�

� �/-�'0��
)*��-
���
�����+
-������)

� ���(���'�
��
)�0����2
'4
)���
-�'7*�/)
"
�-�*�-���

������)
���
�.����7����
72
)���))�

� �������+
����)
-*���
*�����+
�'
-��-
4'�
1'����+

*�4��
�'
"
����)���'�
�'
�(�����
���
8��&)
'�
'�����

� �(+�
������)�
��
)�*4
�'�4������
"

)�*4
�)���/

���
=

���������

	��	���

�����������
��)
�/-�'0��
/�))�0�*2
4'�

�*/')�
�**
'(�
)�(����)
3'0���**
)��''*

����������
�'1
�7'0�
!9M5

��(-�*)
�**
*��0�
1���
�
���+�
'4

�.�����**2
����������
C(�*�4�����'�)
3(-

�'
N
8��)"��0�*
 
���)
2����
�0���+�
L�5

��**
7(�
 
'4
'(�
*��0��)3 #%#? #%%5
��0�

+'��
'��'
4(�����
��(����'�
�������+
'�

�/-*'2/���

����(���'�
��
��4����*)
�'
-')�
%$
����

Page 10



	4���� �'0�/7��
 #%%

O�����*
�')-���*
���''*
�)
�
+''�
)��''*

1���
/��2
'(�)������+
4���(��)
1����

����)
�.��-��'��**2
1�**
4'�
��)

)�(����)�


��
-�'0���)
�
��--2�
)�4�
���
�����+

��0��'�/���
4'�
2'(�+
-�'-*�
1�'
��0�

'4���
�.-��������
4��*��
-*���/���)
��

-��0�'()
)�����+)�


O��0�*'-��+
)�(����)& ��)'(���4(*��))�

��)�*�����
���
����-�������
(����-��)

���
1'��
'4
���
)��''*�P

O�)
�
��)(*�
'4
���
'(�)������+
�����

+(������
���
)(--'���
/')�
)�(����)

7�+��
�'
��0�*'-
�'-��+
)��**)
���2
1�**

����
4'�
�����
4(�(��
*�0�)�


�������)��-)
1���
'����
)��''*)
���

1���
�+�����)
�'
-�'/'��
���
1�*4���
'4

)�(����)
���
�.��**����P

������)
���
�����)
1���

'0��1��*/��+*2
-')���0�
��
�����
-���)�

4'�
���
)��''*�
1���
��
�'�)
4'�
�����

���*����
���
���
)(--'��
��
-�'0���)
4'�

���/P�


	4���� �'0�/7��
 #%%

�����
1���
/��2
/'0��+
��)��/'���)
�'

���
��44������
���
)��''*
��)
/���
��
���

*�0�)
'4
)�(����)
���
�����
4�/�*��)�


�'�
�.�/-*�
�
-�����
)���
����
O�4���
�

0��2
��44��(*�
���
���(/����
-���'�
���)

)��''*
��)
7���
'(�
)�0�'(�P
���
��'����==

O1���'(�
���)
)��''*
1�
1'(*�
�'�
��0�

��'1�
1����
�'
�(���
'(�
��(+����
��)

�'/�
'�
)'
/(��
��
�'�4�������
��(����'�

���
)'
/��2
'����
1�2)�P

	4���� �'0�/7��
 #%%
���
������H

��E
���8�
 

��
�(/7��
'4
2'(�+
-�'-*�
:��)�--���&
4�'/
���
��(����'�
)2)��/
�(���+

2���)
L�9
���
$

��'�
/��2
'4
���)�
-(-�*)
���
��.�

�'�����
1���
��(����'�
�)
�����

����)4��
�'
)��'����2
)��''*

����
��/�
���2
��0�
���
�1�2
4�'/

)��''*
�'/-'(��)
�����
-�'7*�/)
���

/���)
�
)(���))4(*
����)���'�
�'
��K

3���'����25
�*/')�
�/-'))�7*�

�8����
)(���))
1���
E���
$
)�(����)
��

,�
��
 #%#? #%%

Page 11



��E
���8�
 
��
,�

�E'(�+
-�'-*�
��
E���
9
���
$
1�'

)��(++*�
�'
������
)��''*
��+(*��*2

�E'(�+
-�'-*�
1�'
7���4��
4�'/

�.���/�*2
)/�**
+�'(-)
3��.
$5�
%6%

)(--'��
��
���
�*�))�''/
)��(���'�
���

�
4*�.�7*��
����0��(�**2?4'�()��

�(����(*(/

���0��+)
4'�
����?-�2��)
"
�'(���*
'�

�����
A(�+��DD

���
'(�
-�'/'��'��*
�<�DDD

�8'
�'
111�1����*�)��'�(�

�����*
�')-���*)& ���''*
�����������6
�����
�������
,')�-�
��.�'�
�/-()�
%9N�
����
�'��
�'����

*�(+��'��
A����������
�L%
#�Q

��*6
#%9%
L!!
N$!#
��.6
#%9%
$9K
!KL 

)��''*'44���R1����*�)��'�(�

Page 12



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
SCHOOLS FORUM – 25th SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
REPORT OF ACTING DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
 
FINAL DSG ALLOCATIONS 2012-13 
 
 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 The final Dedicated School Grant allocation for Wirral in respect of 2012-13 is 

£227,017,000 (before any academy adjustments).  This is £1,413,000 less than 
the amount included in the budget. The variation arises mainly from an error in 
the submission of the Early Years census and is the subject of ongoing dialogue 
with the Department for Education (DfE) / Education Funding Agency (EFA). 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND 
 

DSG for 2012-13 is calculated from January 2012 PLASC and Early Years 
Census Data.  This information can not be finalised before the budget process 
has been completed and was finally confirmed by the DfE on 26th June 2012. 

 
The Schools Budget was set using an expected level of DSG of £229,260,200.  
This represented estimated pupil numbers (including Early Years) of 45,427 and 
a Guaranteed Unit of Funding (GUF) of £5,028.39  
 
A comparison of the estimated and final census data is shown below, together 
with a financial breakdown: 
    Pupil 
    Estimate Final   Variation          £ 
Schools Census   43,549 43,589       +40    201,135 
Alternative provision          78        69          -9     (45,255) 
Early Years       1,800   1,376       -424 (1,568,857) 
3 year old adjustment  -      112      +112 
Total     45,427 45,146      -281 (1,412,977) 

 
 

The grant reduction arises from an error in the submission of Early Years census 
data. This was not identified at the time due to a breakdown in validation checks 
in Wirral and passed through the DfE’s checks despite being a reduction that 
was by far the largest in the country. 

 
There has been lengthy correspondence over the summer, describing the 
circumstances, the accuracy of data, the impact of the reduction and the need 
for flexibility and fairness, but with little progress. The DfE / EFA view is that 
mistakes can not subsequently be corrected.  
 
This is a very significant sum, which if uncorrected will impact on future spending 
and budget decisions. Further discussion will take place with the Department this 

Agenda Item 4

Page 13



month. Members of the Forum will be kept informed of progress in a report to the 
next meeting  

 
 
3.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 

That members note the report and request a further update at the next meeting. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Julia Hassall 
Acting Director of Children’s Services 
 
 

Page 14



1 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
SCHOOLS FORUM - 25 SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
REPORT OF THE ACTING DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
 
OUTCOME OF CONSULTATION ON CHANGES TO THE LOCAL FUNDING 
FORMULA 
 
 
 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
 This report summarises the responses from a consultation on changes that 

will be made to the Local Funding Formula from April 2013.  A number of 
recommendations are made and the Forum are asked for their views prior to 
submission to Cabinet on 18th October and the Education Funding Agency on 
31st October. 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
 The DfE require Local Authorities to make changes and remodel their local 

funding formula with effect from 1.4.2013.  The aim is to produce a national 
funding system that is “fair, simple, and more consistent”. 

 
 The formula changes to be introduced next year are: 
 

• To simplify and reduce the number of allowable factors that allocate funding 
to schools (these factors include data on pupil numbers, free school meals 
and pupil attainment). 

• To have a single lump sum payment for primary and secondary schools (set 
at a level that is below £200,000) 

• To remove the grant distribution element within the formula and replace 
with other allowable elements. 

• To delegate funding for additional services to schools such as Maternity 
costs. 

• To introduce “Place plus” as the basis for funding Special Schools and 
Bases. 

 
Remodelling the formula will change the current distribution of funding 
between schools.  There will be some schools that gain compared to the 
current formula and others that will lose.  In addition, the impact of further 
delegation may either exacerbate or moderate the impact of changes.  
However the Minimum Funding Guarantee will continue to be the safeguard 
against excessive turbulence over the next few years. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 15



2 

3. CONSULTATION 
 
 All maintained primary, secondary, special and academy schools have been 

consulted on changes with the following responses received to date: 
 

 Primary 30 
 Secondary   4 
 Special 11 

 
 In addition briefings have been held with all Headteacher groups and with 

governors.  Any additional responses received will be updated at the meeting. 
 
 Consultation responses 
 

Q1. Do schools endorse a formula that minimises the financial impact 
of these changes? 

 
A. All schools supported this view – leading a number of responses to 

recommend that increases for schools who gain as a result of changes 
should be capped. 

 
Q2. A number of formula factors need to be changed.  Do you agree 

with proposals for their replacement?  
 Admissions  - Change to pupil numbers 
 School Meals - Change to Free School Meals 
 SEN Lump Sum - Change to SEN prior attainment 
 Index of Multiple - Change to Income Deprivation Affecting  
 Deprivation (IMD)  Children Index (IDACI) 
 
A. Nearly all schools agreed with the change being proposed. 

 
Q3. Comments on the use of the Income Deprivation Affecting 

Children Index.   
 
A Very few schools argued against the use of IDACI data within the 

formula. It is a means of capturing data on pupils who live in areas of 
deprivation even if they are not claiming Free School Meals. 

 
 “The continued principle of helping pupils from deprived areas or 

disadvantaged backgrounds is strongly supported”. 
 
. The consultation paper also asked for views about allocating the 

equivalent funding given to IDACI scores below 0.2 to Pupil Entitlement 
(continuing IMD funding for low scores). 

 
 This was supported although a minority view asked to keep all current 

funding within IDACI, making these resources more targeted. 
 
 
 

Page 16



3 

Q4. Views on Lump Sums within the formula 
 Only one single lump sum will be permitted in future, within the current 

formula there are two – Primary £77,876 and Secondary £142,275. 
 
A. All schools acknowledged the importance of the lump sum and the 

protection it gives to small schools. 
 
Q5. Should the Primary Lump Sum be used, or should it be set at a 

higher level? 
 
A. All secondary schools responding supported a higher lump sum, as 

would a number of primary schools (11 in total), most primary schools 
were in favour of the current lump sum (17 in total). 
 

Q6. Should the balance of the secondary lump sum be reallocated 
over secondary schools? 

 
A. All secondary schools and most primary schools support this proposal. 
 
Q7. Grants will be distributed within the formula based on allowable 

elements. 
 This question asked if schools had any comments on the proposal to 

allocate this funding (£30m) mirroring as far as possible the existing 
funding formula. 

 
A. The responses to these questions frequently took account of individual 

school circumstances, quite a few comment on the amount of losses 
and the fairness of allocations, some suggest a greater amount of this 
funding should be targeted towards deprivation. 

 
This change has been acknowledged as one of the most difficult areas 
to reflect current allocations. 
Comments from schools range from “There are anomalies caused by 
historic allocations which need to be addressed”, to “How is this fair?”. 

 
Q8 9 &10 School views on additional delegation 
 

A number of services can be delegated to all schools from April 2013, 
these include: 

 Advanced Skills Teachers 
 City Learning Centres 
 Schools Library Service 
 Minority Ethnic Achievement Service 
 Special Staff Costs 

Schools Contingency 
Behaviour Support 
Insurance (VA governors liability) 
School Milk and Meals 
Free School Meals eligibility 
Licences and Subscriptions 

Page 17



4 

 
A Within Primary Schools there is a clear preference to retain services 

centrally, with the exception of Advanced Skills Teachers. No specific 
comments have been received regarding VA school governor 
insurance. The picture within secondary schools is less clear. 2 
academies favour delegation (which is a requirement), whilst 1 
secondary asks for central provision and another wants delegation. 

 
Additional questions 

Since the main consultation was issued schools have been asked 2 
further questions: 

 
AQ1 Should a 6th form element be included within the formula? 

A 6th form element can be included in mainstream funding. This would 
change the distribution of secondary school funding, giving some 
funding for 6th form students (from existing 11 – 15 allocations). The 
amounts would reflect previous historic grants  
Other secondary elements within the formula would reduce as a result 
of this change. 
 

A Of the 23 secondary schools and academies 8 would be unaffected by 
this proposal (because of the MFG), 8 would lose (of which 6 have a 6th 
form) and 5 would gain. 
There has been a very limited response to this question. 
 

AQ2 Capping or Scaling Formula gains 
With a fixed overall amount of funding for schools, some formula gains 
will have to be limited in order to fund the MFG for schools where 
budgets are reducing. There are 2 alternatives: 
Scaling. When all formula elements are scaled back this has the effect 
of reducing all school budgets.  
Capping. When budgets are capped, increases (above the MFG) are 
reduced to cover losses elsewhere. The cap increases stability at most 
but not all schools. However it also means that changes intended by 
the new formula take longer to take effect. An unintended consequence 
of a cap is that in some cases schools may lose more than if the 
budget had been scaled. This is because capping will impact most 
where there is the largest difference between the school budget and 
the MFG. 

 
A There are only limited responses to this question, which are evenly split 

over the 2 methods 
 
 The consultation papers are included in Appendix 1. 
 

4  CABINET PROPOSALS 
 
The changes that are being proposed to the funding formula are: 
- to use 6 IDACI bands to allocate funding that was previously based on 

IMD data 

Page 18



5 

- to transfer equivalent funding for scores below 0.2 into Pupil Entitlement 
- To use the existing Primary lump sum within the formula for all schools 
- To redistribute the remaining secondary lump sum funding over secondary 

pupil entitlement 
- to allocate the historic grant funding in a way that mirrors the current 

formula, whilst maintaining primary / secondary totals 
- to set the MFG for 2013-14 at minus 1.5% 
- to include additional funding in the formula using the elements outlined for 

Advanced Skills Teachers, School Library Service, Insurances, School 
Milk and Meals, FSM Eligibility, Special Staff Costs (Maternity etc), 
Schools Contingency, Licences and Subscriptions, Minority Ethnic 
Achievement, Behaviour Support. 

-  not to delegate funding for City learning Centres 
 

The overall impact of the changes to the formula are illustrated in Appendix 2 
attached. This shows the impact of the above using current data and the 
current schools budget. 

 
5 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. The Forum advise on the inclusion of a 6th Form element within the 
formula. 

 
2. The Forum advise if formula gains by schools should be either capped or 

scaled – to provide protection to schools who lose.  
 

3.  The Forum advise Cabinet to proceed with the proposals described 
 
 
4. Using the new voting arrangements for Primary and Secondary 
Representatives the Forum determine whether the following services should 
be de-delegated at the time the Schools Budget is set for 2013-14 

 
School Library Service 
Insurances 
FSM Eligibility 
Special Staff Costs 
Schools Contingency 
Licences and Subscriptions 
Minority Ethnic Achievement 
Behaviour Support 
 

 
 
Julia Hassall 
Acting Director of Children's Services 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



6 

         Appendix 1 
Schools Consultation Paper – Changes To The Local Funding Formula 
 
 
Background 
 
Proposals from the DfE require Local Authorities to make changes and remodel their 
local funding formula for schools wef 1.4.2013. 
 
These changes are to be made prior to introducing a National Funding Formula in 
2015-16. 
 
The aim is to produce a system that is “fairer, simpler and more consistent”.  The 
Schools Forum has formed a working party with Headteacher and Governor 
Representatives – Elaine Cogan, Steve Peach, Steve Dainty, Andre Baird, Jane 
Gordon, John Weise, Richard Longster and Ken Frost .  The group has examined 
the proposals being put forward.  A number of decisions will need to be taken by the 
Schools Forum early in the Autumn Term, your views and comments will help in this 
process. 

 
The formula changes are: 
 

- to simplify and reduce the number of allowable factors that allocate funding to 
schools (these factors include data on pupil numbers, free school meals and 
pupil attainment). 

- to have a single lump sum payment for primary and secondary schools (set at 
a level that is below £150,000) 

- to remove the grant distribution element within the formula and replace with 
other allowable elements 

- to delegate funding for additional services to schools such as Maternity costs 

- to introduce “Place plus” as the basis for funding Special Schools and Bases 

 
Appendix 1 is an overall summary of the DfE’s changes (this paper has been 
previously circulated). 
 
Remodelling the formula will change the current distribution of funding between 
schools.  There will be some schools that gain compared to the current formula and 
others that will lose.  In addition, the impact of further delegation may either 
exacerbate or moderate the impact of changes.  However please remember that 
the Minimum Funding Guarantee will continue to be the safeguard against 
excessive turbulence over the next few years. 
 
The consensus of discussions with the Schools Forum working party is that the LA 
should, as far as is practicable, seek to minimise the financial impact on schools 
from these changes.  The effect of this approach will require changes to the formula 
that limit potential “gains” as well as “losses”.  If this is not possible then it is likely 
that a cap will need to be placed on gains in order that the formula is affordable. 

Page 20



7 

 
 
Question 1.  Schools are asked whether they wish to endorse this approach. 
 
 
 
 
The details of the suggested changes are set out in the paragraphs below.  Schools 
are invited to comment on the overall approach taken and on the details provided.  
Following previous consultations the government now intends to proceed with its 
programme for change, therefore the areas of flexibility available to authorities to 
implement are very limited. 
 
 
1. Simplify the Local Funding Formula 
 
Wirral does not have an overly complex School Funding Formula.  The factors that 
are currently used to fund schools are shown in Appendix 2 together with details of 
their replacement 
 
 
Question 2.  Do you agree with the proposals for: 
 
- Admissions 

- School meals 

- SEN 

- Deprivation replacing the use of the Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) with The 
Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI) as required by the DfE and 
maintaining the use of Free School Meals (not Ever 6). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IDACI is being used by the DfE as the only national index of deprivation that is 
focussed on children.  An IDACI score is a measure of probability (from a score of 0 
to 1), that a child will be living in deprivation.  It allows a measure in addition to FSM, 
whereby funding can be distributed to children who might not be eligible or might not 
take up FSM’s. 
 
Where this measure is used within the formula we will be required to use a banding 
structure, with a fixed number of bands.  No funding will be allocated to an IDACI 
score of below 0.2.  This is a move away from the previous IMD allocations where all 
children attracted a score and would receive some funding.  The use of this measure 

Page 21



8 

is illustrated in Appendix 3, the funding for children with a score of less than 0.2 has 
been transferred into pupil entitlement.  Authorities do not have to use IDACI and 
could choose to use FSM only.  
 
 
Question 3.  Do you have any comments on the use of IDACI data for Deprivation 
funding, or the transfer into pupil funding? 
 
 
 
2. Lump Sums 
 
Lump sums are used within the formula to direct additional funding towards small 
schools.  This is an important element in rural areas but less so in Wirral. 
 
The amounts used in Wirral’s formula are: 
 

- Primary £77,876 
- Secondary £142,273 
 

Historically the level set for Primary Schools represents the salary of a headteacher 
of a small school, together with an additional sum to represent other costs.  
Generally the need for a lump sum to support small secondary schools is not 
recognised nationally or locally. 
 
The lump sum proposed is equal to the level currently used in Primary Schools.  In 
this model there is no 6th form abatement and the additional resources released by 
reducing secondary lump sums would be redistributed over secondary pupil numbers 
and is illustrated in Appendix 4. 
 
Alternatively a higher lump sum could be chosen.  This would benefit smaller 
secondary schools but would be a significant change in primary schools, potentially 
moving relatively large amounts of funding away from pupil numbers (each £10,000 
increase would cost in the region of £0.9m and would reduce the general pupil 
funding by about 2%).  A lump sum set at the mid point between primary and 
secondary is illustrated in Appendix 4a. 
 
Lump sums in respect of SEN would not continue, although there are proposals to 
continue a small grants lump sum. 
 

Questions 
 
4. What is your view on the use of lump sums within the funding formula? 

5. Do you agree with the use of the primary Lump Sum or do you favour a higher or 
lower amount? 

6. Do you agree with the reallocation of lump sum funds (and the basis of 
reallocation over pupil numbers) within Secondary Schools?  

Page 22



9 

3. Grants 
 
This is a large element within the formula £30m (16%) and is made up of a number 
of areas that were previously funded by separate grants (mainly Standards Fund).  
These include amounts representing allocations for School Standards Grant, School 
Development Grant and Specialist Schools.  All have been built up over time from 
lump sums, bandings, pupil numbers (including 6th form), Free School Meals and 
separate grant applications and are therefore difficult to model within the new 
formula.  For example, the allocations for the largest grant, SDG, varies from under 
£100 per pupil to nearly £900 per pupil. 
 
The proposals from the DfE will require all grants within the formula to be distributed 
using the simplified funding formula.  Whilst existing primary / secondary ratios can 
be maintained, it will not be possible to distribute or replicate the existing allocations.  
This area will have the biggest impact on proposals for the formula and for school 
funding generally.  However because the grant distribution is currently within the 
formula the MFG will apply and this will help to reduce turbulence.  
 
The amounts currently allocated for your school are shown in Appendix 5 compared 
with a proposed distribution.  
 
The proposed distribution tries as far as is possible to mirror the current main funding 
formula and maintain the primary/secondary totals.  
 
 
Question 7.  Do you have any comments on the approach taken or the resulting 
allocations? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Additional Delegation to schools. 
 
LA’s are required to delegate the funding for additional services to schools.  This will 
match amounts within the Schools Budget that have been allocated to academies. 
The services are: 
 

- Advanced Skills Teachers.  AST’s help to raise the standard of teaching and 
pupil achievement in their own and  “outreach” schools 

- City Learning Centres.  The 3 CLC’s provide enhanced ICT based learning 
across the whole curriculum. 

- School Library Service.  The service makes learning resources available to 
schools - books, artefacts, posters and DVD’s. 

Page 23



10 

- Minority Ethnic Achievement Service.  MEAS supports children and young 
people for whom English is not their first language. 

- Special Staff Costs.  Teacher maternity, paternity and trade union costs. 

- Contingency.  A budget for exceptional/unforeseen costs that it would be 
unreasonable for Governing Bodies to meet and for School Closure costs. 

- Behaviour Support.  This covers the costs of a small team working with 
Primary Schools and a number of embedded police in Wirral’s Secondary and 
Special Schools. 

- Insurance.  The cost of governors’ liability at Aided Schools. 

- Schools Meals and Milk.  The net budget for milk in schools and a residual 
meals subsidy. 

- FSM eligibility.  The costs of administering the applications for FSM’s. 

- Licences and Subscriptions.  The cost of copyright and performance rights 
licences. 

The amounts in total, the suggested basis of allocation and indicative amounts to be delegated 
are shown in Appendix 6. 

 
Appendix 6a - 6d describes services for AST’s, CLC’s, the School Library Service 
and MEAS in more detail.  These papers ask a number of supplementary questions. 
 
With regard to budgets for Maternity, Contingency, MEAS, School Library, FSM 
eligibility, Licences and Subscriptions and Behaviour Support your representatives 
on the Schools Forum can decide that budgets should continue to be held centrally 
on behalf of all schools in a phase.  This applies to Primary and Secondary Schools 
only, the construction if Special school funding prevents this approach, however 
special schools may still agree to pool funding. 
 
The basis for these decisions would be to give economies of scale or the ability to 
pool risk. 
 
 
Question 8.  Do you have any comment on the elements used to delegate additional 
services to schools? 

Question 9.  Can you indicate how you might advise your Schools Forum 
representative with regard to retention of central budgets? 

Question 10.  Can you indicate if you would pool funding? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



11 

5. Overall Impact 
 
There are many adjustments described above to the level of funding your school will 
receive.  Appendix 7 summarises the overall changes and shows the interaction with 
the MFG.  It is important that in your consideration of these matters you take into 
account the provisional nature of the budgets shown.  Whilst they indicate the impact 
of changes, until final decisions are taken (for example on pupil funding) and October 
Census figures are available, the exact changes will not be known. 
 
 
Question 11 – do you have any additional comments to make? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please compete by 20th July and return to: 
 
Andrew Roberts 
Interim Head of Branch 
Planning and Resources 
Children and Young People’s Department 
Hamilton Buildings 
Conway Street,  
Birkenhead.  
Wirral 
CH41 4FD 
 
 

Page 25



12 

2012-13 New Formula Modelling - INCLUDING 6th FORM ELEMENT      
Cap at 2.77%        
         

This model demonstrates the effect of applying a cap to the new formula allocations.  A cap would limit the formula allocation to 2.77% above the minimum funding 
guarantee.  The purpose of a cap is to enable us to meet the cost of the minimum funding guarantee within a fixed budget. 
 
The MFG is set at -1.5% in line with guidance from the DfE.  In order to pay for this, new formula allocations are capped at 2.77% above the MFG.  Schools whose 
formula allocation is less than the MFG receive the MFG.  Schools whose formula allocation is greater than the MFG receive the lower of the formula allocation or the 
MFG plus 2.77%. 
         
  201213 New Formula New Cap Amount    

DfE School 
Adjusted 
Budget 

Allocation 
201213 MFG 

(at MFG + 
2.77%) Final Budget   

         
 Primary 90,042,314 90,150,161 88,018,223 -1,123,385 89,650,276   
 Secondary 90,121,170 90,013,623 89,307,880 -252,978 90,512,217   
 Total 180,163,484 180,163,784 177,326,103 -1,376,363 180,162,492   
      1292   
        
  201213 New Formula New Cap Amount   

Compare old & 
new budgets 

DfE School 
Adjusted 
Budget 

Allocation 
201213 MFG 

(at MFG + 
2.77%) Final Budget  £ 

2000 Bedford Drive Primary School 1,390,543 1,378,857 1,338,812 -2,960 1,375,897  -14,646 
2001 Bidston Village CE Primary School 1,025,253 1,010,987 1,099,208 0 1,099,208  73,955 
2021 Woodlands Primary School 1,202,904 1,211,414 1,183,613 0 1,211,414  8,510 
2048 Devonshire Park Primary School 1,213,678 1,223,244 1,167,001 -23,917 1,199,327  -14,351 
2100 New Brighton Primary School 1,661,690 1,681,635 1,632,507 -3,907 1,677,727  16,037 
2101 Mount Primary School 1,125,212 1,188,263 1,126,712 -30,341 1,157,922  32,710 
2102 Liscard Primary School 2,149,170 2,128,908 2,066,529 -5,136 2,123,772  -25,398 
2104 St. George's Primary School 2,359,120 2,469,668 2,323,909 -81,387 2,388,281  29,161 
2107 Riverside Primary School 963,636 950,442 905,267 -20,099 930,343  -33,293 
2108 Kingsway Primary School 474,740 453,612 460,131 0 460,131  -14,609 
2110 Park Primary School 1,327,750 1,334,115 1,308,131 0 1,334,115  6,365 
2111 Somerville Primary School 1,808,156 1,900,305 1,766,448 -84,927 1,815,379  7,223 
2112 Eastway Primary School 784,509 761,486 768,768 0 768,768  -15,741 

P
age 26



13 

2115 Castleway Primary School 736,371 676,667 697,282 0 697,282  -39,089 
2116 Sandbrook Primary School 636,244 613,006 634,771 0 634,771  -1,473 
2117 Greenleas Primary School 1,048,168 1,072,890 1,020,246 -24,383 1,048,507  339 
2118 Lingham Primary School 974,525 993,303 942,634 -24,558 968,745  -5,780 
2200 Stanton Road Primary School 972,080 1,030,392 951,171 -52,874 977,518  5,438 
2201 Woodslee Primary School 1,017,991 1,047,027 1,004,315 -14,893 1,032,135  14,144 
2203 Higher Bebington Junior School 1,087,978 1,135,965 1,078,020 -28,084 1,107,881  19,903 
2204 Town Lane Infants 824,790 816,111 804,547 0 816,111  -8,679 
2205 Grove Street Primary School 1,331,908 1,362,751 1,250,615 -77,494 1,285,257  -46,651 
2210 Brackenwood Junior School 801,828 805,470 790,103 0 805,470  3,642 
2212 Thornton Hough Primary School 581,470 582,589 572,816 0 582,589  1,119 
2214 Mendell Primary School 706,526 701,008 681,878 -242 700,766  -5,760 
2215 Brookhurst Primary School 660,349 667,211 642,784 -6,622 660,589  240 
2217 Raeburn Primary School 1,177,329 1,209,989 1,157,813 -20,105 1,189,884  12,555 
2218 Brackenwood Infants School 670,814 654,619 655,893 0 655,893  -14,921 
2220 Greasby Infants School 643,599 636,678 630,159 0 636,678  -6,921 
2221 West Kirby Primary School 902,058 937,942 873,350 -40,400 897,542  -4,516 
2224 Irby Primary School 701,681 691,982 671,928 -1,441 690,540  -11,141 
2225 Greasby Junior School 772,605 807,623 774,962 -11,194 796,428  23,823 
2226 Black Horse Hill Infants School 552,549 539,974 546,310 0 546,310  -6,239 
2227 Brookdale Primary School 777,393 785,948 776,315 0 785,948  8,555 
2229 Barnston Primary School 831,856 856,623 804,466 -29,873 826,750  -5,106 
2231 Poulton Lancelyn Primary School 1,210,788 1,280,109 1,199,024 -47,872 1,232,237  21,449 
2232 Black Horse Hill Junior School 596,800 603,908 595,301 0 603,908  7,108 
2234 Great Meols Primary School 1,243,966 1,307,756 1,246,264 -26,970 1,280,786  36,820 
2238 Gayton Primary School 704,535 707,021 687,468 -511 706,511  1,976 
2244 Egremont Primary School 1,407,646 1,344,488 1,340,081 0 1,344,488  -63,158 
2249 Portland Primary School 818,312 766,610 819,009 0 819,009  697 
2250 Heswall Primary School 717,456 695,991 698,756 0 698,756  -18,700 
2252 Fender Primary School 946,710 929,087 925,500 0 929,087  -17,623 
2254 Manor Primary School 488,062 486,112 486,400 0 486,400  -1,662 
2255 Mersey Park Primary School 1,518,088 1,546,441 1,512,005 0 1,546,441  28,353 
2256 Overchurch Infants School 953,336 920,296 911,171 0 920,296  -33,040 
2258 Rock Ferry Primary School 1,143,433 1,135,190 1,126,250 0 1,135,190  -8,243 
2260 Woodchurch Road Primary School 1,727,860 1,782,446 1,705,733 -29,464 1,752,982  25,122 

P
age 27



14 

2261 Cathcart Street Primary School 875,284 819,126 837,286 0 837,286  -37,998 
2263 Well Lane Primary School 860,608 838,158 806,901 -8,906 829,252  -31,356 
2264 Thingwall Primary School 705,888 715,397 700,813 0 715,397  9,509 
2266 Church Drive Primary School 992,384 977,606 960,402 0 977,606  -14,778 
2268 Leasowe Primary School 808,286 753,954 786,379 0 786,379  -21,907 
2270 Overchurch Junior School 1,109,073 1,134,153 1,113,422 0 1,134,153  25,080 
2274 Heygarth Primary School 906,568 911,989 879,938 -7,677 904,312  -2,256 
2275 Bidston Avenue Primary 1,512,694 1,510,273 1,482,893 0 1,510,273  -2,421 
2278 Townfield Primary 1,354,450 1,356,376 1,321,376 0 1,356,376  1,926 
2279 Hillside Primary School 731,988 680,363 720,213 0 720,213  -11,775 
3009 St. Bridget's Primary School 1,214,903 1,246,543 1,191,908 -21,619 1,224,924  10,021 
3010 Hoylake Holy Trinity CE Primary School 810,639 811,744 785,950 -4,023 807,721  -2,918 
3011 Christ Church CE Primary (Birkenhead) 955,268 912,625 900,742 0 912,625  -42,643 
3300 St. Saviour's CE Primary 806,038 798,313 792,793 0 798,313  -7,725 
3304 Woodchurch CE Aided Primary 824,970 853,863 812,671 -18,681 835,182  10,212 
3321 St. Joseph's Cath Primary (Upton) 1,038,728 1,092,368 1,004,305 -60,243 1,032,124  -6,604 
3322 St. Peter's Cath Primary (Birkenhead) 723,686 673,966 725,186 0 725,186  1,500 
3324 St. Paul's Cath Primary 551,054 450,467 538,570 0 538,570  -12,484 
3330 Ss. Peter and Paul Cath Primary 973,111 959,521 955,944 0 959,521  -13,590 
3331 St. Alban's Cath Primary 1,341,744 1,401,106 1,329,572 -34,705 1,366,401  24,657 
3333 St. Joseph's Cath Primary (Wallasey) 1,047,289 991,451 1,003,246 0 1,003,246  -44,043 
3335 Sacred Heart Cath Primary School 1,136,112 1,154,068 1,114,639 -8,554 1,145,515  9,403 
3337 Christchurch CE Primary (Moreton) 1,215,783 1,293,943 1,176,188 -85,175 1,208,768  -7,015 
3350 St. Andrew's CE Primary 723,792 727,534 710,511 0 727,534  3,742 
3351 Dawpool CE Primary School 688,236 692,083 670,443 -3,069 689,014  778 
3352 St. Peter's CE Aided Primary (Heswall) 954,613 971,442 928,006 -17,730 953,712  -901 
3360 St. John's Cath Junior School 840,822 873,800 834,046 -16,650 857,149  16,327 
3361 Christ the King Cath Primary School 1,227,639 1,330,478 1,224,195 -72,373 1,258,105  30,466 
3362 St. John's Cath Infant School 714,463 702,876 702,444 0 702,876  -11,587 
3363 Holy Spirit Catholic & CE Primary 802,719 710,683 767,448 0 767,448  -35,271 
3364 Our Lady of Pity Cath Primary School 1,256,038 1,265,013 1,224,476 -6,619 1,258,394  2,356 
3365 Ladymount Cath Primary School 872,224 896,988 831,112 -42,854 854,134  -18,090 
3366 The Priory CE Aided Primary 914,245 900,432 900,672 0 900,672  -13,573 
3367 Our Lady and St Edward's Cath Primary 1,487,640 1,444,380 1,448,275 0 1,448,275  -39,365 
3368 Holy Cross Cath Primary 923,241 903,710 905,713 0 905,713  -17,528 

P
age 28



15 

3369 St. Anne's Cath Primary 822,603 751,592 786,208 0 786,208  -36,395 
3371 St. Michael & all Angels Cath Primary 892,092 830,509 858,442 0 858,442  -33,650 
3372 St. Werburgh's Cath Primary School 889,759 833,341 856,366 0 856,366  -33,393 
3373 St. Joseph's Cath Primary (B'head) 1,313,264 1,346,611 1,287,108 -23,850 1,322,761  9,497 
3374 Prenton Primary 1,333,359 1,337,990 1,300,949 -1,004 1,336,985  3,626 
3375 Millfields CE Primary School 720,616 671,015 697,018 0 697,018  -23,598 
3376 Pensby Primary 794,936 798,157 781,078 0 798,157  3,221 
4010 Prenton High School for Girls 3,778,280 3,634,043 3,755,489 0 3,755,489  -22,791 
4012 Woodchurch High School 6,851,988 6,938,980 6,699,699 -53,700 6,885,281  33,293 
4018 Ridgeway High School 3,722,207 3,532,650 3,639,759 0 3,639,759  -82,448 
4052 Wirral Grammar School for Girls 3,672,646 3,673,460 3,604,439 0 3,673,460  814 
4056 West Kirby Grammar 3,678,493 3,864,145 3,648,806 -114,268 3,749,878  71,385 
4057 Pensby High School for Boys 2,080,734 2,031,659 2,076,019 0 2,076,019  -4,715 
4058 Pensby High School for Girls 2,838,852 2,856,440 2,842,106 0 2,856,440  17,588 
4060 Hilbre High School 4,205,805 4,306,205 4,203,083 0 4,306,205  100,400 
4066 Mosslands School 4,345,291 4,320,811 4,426,747 0 4,426,747  81,456 
4067 Oldershaw Academy 3,586,201 3,469,693 3,556,967 0 3,556,967  -29,234 
4069 Weatherhead School 5,835,312 5,910,737 5,761,734 0 5,910,737  75,425 
4070 Bebington High School 3,927,113 3,912,866 3,858,011 0 3,912,866  -14,247 
4071 South Wirral High School 4,684,575 4,723,447 4,614,211 0 4,723,447  38,872 
4073 Wallasey School 4,135,470 4,249,342 4,162,005 0 4,249,342  113,872 
4605 Plessington Catholic High  6,164,453 6,045,195 6,183,741 0 6,183,741  19,288 
4611 St. Mary's RC College 6,974,585 7,076,026 6,953,366 0 7,076,026  101,441 
4798 University Academy of Birkenhead 5,495,758 5,304,182 5,365,770 0 5,365,770  -129,988 
5400 Calday Grange Grammar School 4,199,125 4,253,012 4,134,275 -4,218 4,248,794  49,669 
5401 Wirral Grammar School for Boys 3,423,944 3,553,324 3,378,935 -80,793 3,472,531  48,587 
5900 St. Anselm's College 3,123,873 3,036,689 3,087,756 0 3,087,756  -36,117 
5901 Upton Hall School 3,396,464 3,320,717 3,354,962 0 3,354,962  -41,502 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



 
WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM – SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
REPORT OF THE ACTING DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
 
 
FUNDING FOR PUPILS WITH HIGH NEEDS 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
A new set of funding arrangements for pupils and students with high needs (low incidence/high 
cost – pupils with statements of special educational needs or individual funding packages) are due 
to come into effect for all schools.   There are transitional arrangements proposed for the year 
2013-2014 that offer some financial protection before the new system operates fully form April 
2014. 
 
This report outlines progress on the funding consultation carried out with all schools and makes 
recommendations about the transitional arrangements for April 2013 and for the funding 
arrangements from April 2014. 
 
 
Background 
The funding consultation posed 14 questions, some with sub-divisions.  A total of 21 schools 
responded; 10 mainstream and 11 special schools. 
 
The funding consultation and a digest of responses are attached in the appendix. 
 
This report offers a summary of each question, the responses to it and a recommendation. 
 
 
Q1  This question asked if there were any additional principles that the LA should adopt in 

addition to those outlined in the national consultation.  
  

Responses 
Comments were made about the relative importance, significance and implications of some 
of the principles but no additional ones were proposed 

 
Recommendation 1 
Wirral adopts the principles and approach outlined in School Funding Reform 2012 to 
underpin the new system of funding pupils with high needs. 

 
 
 
Q2 This question asked for views about three alternatives for the use of inclusion monies 

currently in special schools’ budgets. 
 

Responses 
Seven responses favoured placing the money in the High Needs block and special schools 
inclusion work is reviewed to re-commission successful projects and initiatives from special 

Agenda Item 6

Page 31



schools.  Two favoured it being placed in the high needs block to fund the cost of pupils 
provision.  Two favoured it being available for re-commissioning 

 
Recommendation 2 
The current arrangements for inclusion monies are retained subject to a future review 
of current projects and initiatives. 
 
 

 
Q3 This question asked for views about a banding model approach and about the illustrative 

example and proposed setting up a working group from the Forum tasked with developing a 
local banding system for top-ups 

 
 Responses  

Some detailed responses were received.  Most agreed with the banding model approach, 
several pointed out that the illustrative example was alarming and argued that it wrongly 
assigned monetary values.  
 
The majority of respondents agreed with need for a working group, a couple suggested 
independent advice was needed 

 
Recommendation 3 
A working group of the Schools Forum is established to develop a local banding 
model for top-up funding for pupils with high needs. 
  

 
 
Q4 This question asked if Wirral should use the Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) to 

construct budgets for the transitional year. 
 
 Responses 
 The overwhelming majority agreed with need to use the MFG. 
 
 Recommendation 4  

The Authority uses the MFG to construct budgets for specialist provision for the 
transitional year 2013-2014. 
 

 
 
Q5 This question asked whether additional local protection for special schools was necessary 

as result of budget changes and empty places, and if so what could they be and how would 
they be funded 

 
 Responses 

There was mixture of responses to this question.  Several felt that there could be a need in 
certain instances, such as, a small special school, that time scales for implementing a new 
system may make it necessary, that BESD schools needed protection, that there should be 
top slice of the DSG for the loss of specialist school status. 
 
Recommendation 5 

Page 32



Local protection for may be considered for individual special schools affected by 
significant turbulence because of funding changes due to empty places. 

 
  
 
Q6 This was a question about funding excess places 
 

Responses 
The majority of responses agreed that using top up funding was preferable to current trigger 
arrangements. 
 
Recommendation 6 
Excess places in specialist provision is funded on the basis of the high 

  need pupil top-up 
 
 
 
Q7 This was about developing a reviewing cycle out of current local work to integrate with the 

proposed arrangements for place reviews by the Education Funding Agency (EFA). 
 
 Responses 
 The response agreed with this proposal 
 

Recommendation 7 
The current local arrangements for reviewing surplus places are amended to keep all 

  places under review and integrated with EFA arrangements. 
 

 
 
Q8 This question was about future use of the current exceptional needs budget. 
 
 Responses 

Most respondents agreed, with some qualifications, with the suggestions made about the 
use of this budget. 
 

 Recommendation 8 
The exceptional needs budget is placed in the high needs block to honour existing 
agreements, and in future the monies will be used to fund top-ups. 

 
 
Questions 9-12 involved questions about changes to places in current provision. 
 

Recommendation 9 
The Authority move ahead with the locally planned changes to reduce the number of 

  places by five each at Foxfield Secondary Special School and The Lyndale Primary 
  Special School. 
 

Recommendation 10 
The Authority move ahead with the increase to the number of places at Gilbrook 
Primary Special School from 50 to 55 by April 2013 

 

Page 33



Recommendation 11 
The Authority move ahead with the proposal to close the Education Inclusion Base at 
Rock Ferry Primary School at the end of the academic year 2013. 
 
Recommendation 12 
The Authority move ahead to increase the place number at Elleray Park from to 80 
from April 2013 
 

 
 
Q13 This question was about increasing the value of the individually assigned pupil units so that 

Wirral is in line with that strongly recommend by the government. 
 
 Responses 
 The majority of responses were in agreement. 
 

Recommendation 13 
The sum of £250, 000 is delegated to mainstream schools so that Wirral’s five units of 
individually assigned support is increased in value form £5,665 to £6,000. 

 
 
 
Q14 This was an open-ended question for any additional comments. 
 

Responses 
A flavour of them can be seen responses can be seen in the appendix. 

 
 

No recommendations are made with regard to this question. 
 
 
 
 
Julia Hassall 
Acting Director of Children’s Services 

Page 34



 
FUNDING PUPILS AND STUDENTS WITH HIGH NEEDS (SEN)  

 
1. Context 
2. Future SEN and the Local Context 
3. High Needs 
4. High Needs Block 
5. Inclusion Services from Special Schools 
6. Future Funding in Specialist Settings: Place-Plus 
7. Transitional Arrangements for 2014-2014: Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) for 

Specialist Provision. 
8. Funding Numbers Over Roll in Specialist Provision 
9. Reviewing the Number of Places in Specialist Provision 
10. Exceptional Needs 
11. Place Numbers for Specialist Provision 2013-14 
12. Place Plus in Mainstream Schools 
13. Notional SEN Budget 

 
 
1. Context 
 
1.1 The Green Paper on special educational needs (SEN) and disability, Support and 

aspiration: A new approach to special educational needs and disability sets out a reform 
agenda for raising aspirations and improving attainment of pupils and students who 
require additional specialist, often costly, educational support that is currently usually 
provided through a statement of specials educational needs.  The Green Paper signal 
matters that need to be developed. 

 
1.2 A new set of funding arrangements for pupils and students with high needs is proposed 

to help achieve the aspirations in the Green Paper.  The new funding arrangements for 
SEN are a set of very detailed proposals set out in School funding reform: Next steps 
towards a fairer system that cover funding for all schools. 

 
1.3 The funding proposals that are being made are due to come into effect for all schools 

from April 2013.  There are some transitional arrangements for the years 2013-14 that 
offer some financial protection. They are outlined in section 5. 

 
1.4  School Funding Reform sets out ten general principles that will underpin the new 

system.  These are: 
 

1.  The funding provided should meet the impartially assessed needs of the child or 
young person for whom it is provided.  

2.  So far as practicable, the preferences of the parents or young person should be 
followed in placing the child or young person.  

3. The interests of the taxpayer require that funding and resources should be used 
efficiently and to best effect.  

4. The funding should not be seen as fixed, but subject to review, and may change 
as the child or young person’s assessed needs change.  

5. Where children or young people have social care needs or health needs, 
appropriate contributions should be made from the budgets for those services.  

6. The commissioning body (usually the local authority) should meet the cost of the 
educational provision, in order that proper regard is given to financial 
considerations.  

Page 35



7. The commissioning body should have an open and transparent system for the 
allocation of high needs resources, which makes use of expert advice and is 
consistently applied.  

8. The commissioning body should monitor the effectiveness of the provision, and 
that it achieves relevant and appropriate outcomes for the child or young person.  

9. Because of the specialist nature and high cost of premises and staffing, funding 
systems need to provide some protection to institutions in which not all the places 
are filled. But this does not mean that indefinite protection should be given to 
unsuccessful institutions. 

10. Pupil Premium and equivalent Post-16 disadvantage funding is additional to all 
other sums allocated.  

 
 
1.5 The new funding system’s approach will be one in which: 
 

i) funding is genuinely responsive to individual pupils’ and students’ needs in 
a way balances greater responsiveness of providers’ funding to actual pupil or 
student numbers with a an appropriate degree of funding stability for specialist 
providers; 

 
ii) all providers are funded on an equivalent basis so that the programme of 

education for a high needs pupil or student is funded in a comparable way 
whatever form of institution they attend; 

 
iii) education funding for pre-16 and post-16 high needs provision is brought 

together so as to support the development of the integrated approach to 
assessment and planning from birth to 25 proposed in the SEN and disability 
green paper, as well as ensuring that young people are able to make successful 
transitions at 16 and to adult life; 

 
iv) there is clear information about available provision for high needs pupils 

and students in the form of local offer that will set out clearly what providers will 
be expected to provide to high needs pupils and students. 

 
 
Q1: We must adopt the principles and approach to guide local policy development.  

Are there any additional principles or characteristics to add to the approaches 
outlined above that the LA should also consider adopting? 

 
Responses: 
 
1. No comment 
2. Agree principles, but would prefer place funding as it offers stability for sp schools. 
3. No additional principles but stress a need for budget certainty stability and predictability. 
4. Raised detailed query about concept of ‘equal funding.  No comments about principles. 
5. Agree principles, emphasises potential changes to budgets must be minimised. 
6. No comment 
7. Needs to be further principles to reflect Hospital school provision – none suggested. 
8. Agree, but think the proposal do not reflect them, calls for clearer and impartial 

assessments of pupils needs. 
9. Suggests there is an opportunity to consider an alternative form of support for BESD 

pupils. 
10. No comment 
11. No additional principles 

Page 36



12. No comment 
13. No comment 
14. No additional ones 
15. No comment 
16. No additional ones 
17. Where possible support should be provided in Wirral 
18. No additional ones 
19. No additional ones 
20. No additional ones, strongly support number one and number five (health contributions) 
21. Lots of comments about the importance of various elements of the principles, no 

additional ones proposed. 
 
Recommendation 1 
Wirral adopts the principles and approach outlined in School Funding Reform 2012 to 
underpin the new system of funding pupils with high needs. 
 
 
 
2. Future SEN and the Local Context 
 
2.1 Wirral has extensive and successful specialist provision. It comprises: 
 

i) Special Schools 
Foxfield, Meadowside, Hayfield, Clare Mount, Orrets Meadow, Elleray Park, 
Lyndale, Kilgarth, Observatory, Stanley, Gilbrook. (11) 

 
ii) Resourced Provisions 

These are locally known as Education Inclusion Bases or Units in primary schools.  
In total there are 17 mainstream schools with Resourced Provision 

 
iii) Alternative Provision (AP):   

St Michael’s and Riverside Behaviour Bases, Wirral Hospital Schools, and Wirral 
Alternative Schools Programme (WASP). 

 
 

2.2 The new national funding arrangements will apply to all of this provision.  The same 
principles and approaches are to be adopted to improve clarity and transparency about 
funding.  The same funding model will apply to all of this provision nationally.   
 

2.3 Funding arrangements for AP are modelled the same way as the funding arrangements 
for specialist SEN provision. The only difference will be in the size of the national 
threshold of funding to Alternative Provision which will set at a lower level than to SEN 
provision.  For SEN provision it will be £10,000 and for AP it will be £8,000.  

  
2.3 The language and concepts in SEN are also changing.  There will be only one school 

based category of SEN to replace School Action and School Action Plus.  This school 
based category will cover pupils known as Low Needs-High Incidence.  Pupils who 
needs are not normally met in mainstream provision will be referred to as High 
Needs/Low Incidence.  It is funding for the latter with this consultation is largely 
concerned and the section headings of High Needs, High Needs Block, and Place-Plus   
will outline how they relate to funding.   

 

Page 37



2.4 The funding changes will not be neutral.  A new system is being developed that provide 
us all with challenges and opportunities as historic and local arrangements will need to 
change in line with the principle and approaches set out above.   

 
 
3. High Needs  
  
3.1 There is no precise definition of a high needs pupil or high needs student, but the 

government means those pupils or students who require provision that would not 
normally be available in mainstream settings.  They have deliberately chosen to define a 
financial threshold as opposed to an assessment based threshold for defining high need, 
such as having a statement of special educational needs, since the latter could create 
perverse incentives if assessment was directly linked to additional funding.  High needs 
are defined as those requiring provision costing around £10,000 or more per year. 

 
3.2 Currently, in Wirral this would include all pupils with statements attending special 

schools, pupils with statements attending mainstream schools, pupils without statements 
attending primary language bases and Orrets Meadow, pupils who receive additional 
support in the form of Health Care Plans, Individual Pupil Funding Agreements, and 
direct support from Hearing and Vision Services.  It will also include those pupils and 
students educated in non-maintained independent and non-maintained independent 
special schools. 

  
 
4. High Needs Block    

 
4.1 The government intend to bring together all education revenue funding for high needs 

pupils and students across the SEN, 16+ Learning Difficulties/Disabilities (LDD), and 
Alternative Provision (AP) sectors, in the form of a clearly identified notional High Needs 
Block within the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).  
 

4.2 This will mean that local authorities will receive an identified amount of funding for high 
needs pupils and students aged from birth to 25, and for which the LA must commission 
provision and provide funding for providers.  This funding is indicative and not ring 
fenced. 

 
5. Inclusion Services from Special Schools 
 
5.1 Currently, special schools receive some monies that could remain in the High Needs 

Block so it is important to consult with you about these monies.  
 
 

5.2 All Wirral’s special schools, and including the Hospital School, each receive a sum of 
£33,470, making a total of £ 401,601 for them to promote inclusive activities for the 
benefit of special school’s own pupils into mainstream schools, and inclusive activities for 
mainstream schools.  This money was agreed by the Schools Forum in June 2005. A 
number of future options are possible about the use of this money. 

 
i. The money remains in the High Needs Block and special schools inclusion work is 

reviewed to re-commission successful projects and initiatives from special 
schools. 

ii. The money is placed in the high needs block to fund provision for pupils’ and 
students’ special needs so that it is disappears as a separate budget and is 
subsumed into the High Needs Block and then distributed for pupil funding. 

Page 38



iii.  The money becomes available for the LA to commission new activity in priority 
areas of need such as social communication difficulties, early intervention, for 
targeted work on groups of pupils who have the lowest needs and the highest 
probability of being included in mainstream school full-time, etc. 

 
Q 2: What are your views about these alternatives? 
 
Responses: 
1. Agree with methodology 
2. Prefer option 5.2i. – money to remain in special sector as all initiatives driven by that 

sector 
3. Prefer 5.2i.  %.2ii takes money out of special sector.  5.2iii puts money into LA hands and 

not schools – as it is special schools that have led these initiatives and not the LA. 
4. Seemed to suggest option 5.2i preferred. 
5. Prefers option 5.2i.  Sp provision has spent developing innovative initiatives and money 

has been part of the budget for some years. 
6. Supports either 5.2 i or  ii 
7. Prefers option 5.2i 
8. Option 5.2ii – placed in high needs block but goes to specials schools and Hospital 

school. 
9. Prefers money to remain with special schools. 
10. Prefers option 5.2i creates stability and has worked well to-date 
11. Option 5.2i 
12. 5.2iii – seems to be shortage of support to schools 
13. No comment 
14. Should fall in line with national 
15. No comment 
16. Agree with methodology 
17 5.3iii would give opportunity for new focused work which is greatly needed 
18 Stay the same as now 
19 Inclusion services form special schools would be useful 
20 5.3ii most appropriate 
21. 5.2 I is the preferred option. 
 
Recommendation 2 
The current arrangements for inclusion monies are retained subject to a future review of 
current projects and initiatives. 
 
 
 
 
6 Future Funding in Specialist Settings: Place-Plus   
 
6.1 One of the key planks of high needs funding reform is to move towards a more pupil-led 

funding system in which there remains an element of place-led funding.  Under this 
Place-Plus system funding, in special schools and other specialist pre-16 SEN settings, 
such as resourced provision as units and bases, will be determined partly on the number 
of places, and partly on the number of pupils attending the special school or provision.   

 
6.2 Currently, special schools are funded for a number of places and receive a budget based 

on the number of places whether or not places are filled.  In the future all places in all 
specialist provision will receive a base level of funding at £10,000 per place. 
 

Page 39



6.3 Top-up funding in the new system is not provided on the basis of planned places, but on 
a per-pupil basis. It is matter for local determination how top-up rates are set and when 
they are paid, guidance suggests payment could be monthly or termly.   
 

6.4 Like many authorities Wirral currently uses a banded framework to generate special 
schools budgets and guidance suggests that we build on such a framework.  There will 
not be a national framework of top up funding.   
 

6.5 Wirral’s framework was designed eleven years ago.  It was initially based on assessed 
need but over time it has largely become a financial tool not related to current assessed 
need except, that is, in the cases of Hayfield and Clare Mount where pupil are admitted 
on the basis of one of the two funding bands applicable to the school.   

 
6.6 Guidance suggests that we review our local funding arrangements and consider a 

banded approach.  Clearly, this will have implications for admissions because pupils 
needs and proposed funding will be at the centre of dialogue between the commissioner 
and provider and not historic models of funding and admissions. 

 
6.7 The implication of the place-plus approach for specialist provision is that they will 

experience budget changes depending on the number and needs of pupils attending the 
provision as this will affect the amount of top-up funding they receive. 

 
6.8 Resourced provision is funded from a mixture of a single lump amount and the AWPU for 

the pupil attending.  Funding of Wirral’s various resourced provisions is historic.  Place-
Plus funding will apply to these provisions in the future.  In the future they will receive a 
base budget of £10,000 per place and a top-up that is determined locally.    

 
6.9 Table A illustrates what a banding system may be like applied to Wirral’s special schools 

and resourced provision from 2014-15.  It is for illustration only. The tables shows the 
impact of three possible funding bands., Table A(i), funding where all the places are full 
and Table A (ii) funding based on current pupil numbers.  The bands are built around the 
best fit from current budgets across all specialist provision, with this illustrative example 
showing only one possible band for each provision.  What is clear is that implementing a 
top-up system based on banding may lead to some redistribution of funding. 
 

Q 3: What do you think about a banded top-up system and about the rates shown?  
Would you like to see a small working group from the School Forum tasked with 
developing a local banding system that applies to special schools and resourced 
provision and that reports before the end of this calendar year? 

 
Responses 
1. Agree 
2. Agree a form of banding necessary.  But prefer LA to work with other LAs to develop a 

system and not a local group as they would not be impartial. 
3. Agree with banding and strongly need for further work by a forum working group. 
4. Agrees with a banded approach to top up and need for a task group to examine 

possibilities.  Also respondent posed a series of questions that a banded system would 
have to take into account. 

5. Some of the projections look alarming; would like to hear stories behind these changes to 
others before agreeing. 

6. Agrees with banding and says illustration far too simplistic. 
7. Agrees with top up and working group. 
8. Suggests a small working group serviced by independent external advice 
9. Working group needs to recognise BESD pupils should be in highest funding category 

Page 40



10. Needs to have flexibility built in.  Does not agree small working group would have the 
expertise. 

11. Support top up and working group 
12. Supports top up 
13. Yes to top up and yes to working group 
14. Yes 
15. Yes to both 
16. Yes to both 
17 Yes, clearly a working group is needed 
18 Set up a working party 
19 Yes 
20 Agree with need for working group, especially given the inadequacy of current funding.  

Suggest someone with health based experience is included. 
21 Agrees small working needs to develop this with school leaders and neighbouring LAs 
 
Recommendation 3 
A working group of the Schools Forum is established to develop a local banding model 
for top-up funding for pupils with high needs. 
 
 
 
 
7 Transitional Arrangements for 2013-2014: Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) for 

Specialist Provision 
 
7.1 The MFG for special schools and resourced provision applies to the place element of 

funding and represents the principal protection for these settings, and it will be the 
agreed number of places funded at £10,000 per planned place with top-up funding 
coming from each LA that places pupils in the school or setting.  This protection is for 
one year only. 
 

7.2 In addition, in the first year the government has set as condition of grant that the level of 
top-up funding should be such that, were all the high needs pupils in that setting placed 
by that LA, the school’s total funding for 2013-14 would not be more than 1.5% below the 
funding that the school received in 2012-13.  
 

7.3 The DfE has clarified that this means total budget  funding will not be more than 1.5% 
below the funding  received in 2012-13 if all the places were full as the MFG for special 
provision is attached to the pupil top-up funding rather than the places.  This means that 
a school with empty places in its specialist provision can expect less funding if it does not 
fill its places. 

 
7.4 Table B uses the DfE steps to produce a special school funding with the MFG to provide 

a budget for special schools and resourced provision using the 2012-13 budget with the 
January Census pupil count of 2012.  This particular budget is constructed using a 
school specific single top-up as the current banding no longer applies to the majority of 
specials schools. 

 
Q 4: Should Wirral use the MFG to construct budgets for the transitional year?   
 
 
Responses 
1. Yes 
2. Yes. 

Page 41



3. Yes 
4. Yes 
5. Yes 
6. Yes- based on year end number. 
7. Yes 
8. Yes 
9. Yes. 
10. Yes, and beyond 
11. Yes 
12. No comment 
13. No comment 
14. Yes 
15. What are the alternatives? 
16. Yes 
17 Yes –issue for the working group 
18 Yes 
19 Yes 
20 Yes 
21 Yes, and cautions that a ‘free market’ may create significant instability 
 
Recommendation 4  
The Authority uses the MFG to construct budgets for specialist provision for the 
transitional year 2013-2014. 
 
 
 
Q 5: Should Wirral devise any local protection for special schools in addition to the 

MFG where budgets will reduce as a result budget changes and empty places 
whilst plans are developed and implemented to reconfigure provision? If so, what 
could they be and how would they be funded?  

 
Responses 
1. Yes 
2. Seems unnecessary.  
3. See additional protection as unnecessary. 
4. Yes – and comments on situation in CLD sector. 
5. Asks for a clear view about patterns behind excess places. 
6. See response to Q4 – if this is not possible then some form of protection will be 

important. 
7. If significant changes could occur suggests working group to be formed 
8. Yes 
9. There is a need for local protection and reiterates need for BESD pupils to be in highest 

funding category. 
10. Top slice for specialist school status 
11. No comment 
12. No comment 
13. No comment 
14. Depends on specific needs across Wirral 
15. Some protection needed depending on time scales 
16. No comment 
17 Issue for the working group 
18 Sp School should have their budgets protected – but not sure how 
19 No 

Page 42



20 Want to see the MFG applying to total funding and not having a pupil element until 
banded funding is agreed.  Without it school will be financially unviable. 

21 Certainly for small special schools. 
 
Recommendation 5 
Local protection for may be considered for individual special schools affected by 
significant turbulence because of funding changes due to empty places. 
 
 
 
 
8 Funding Number Over Roll in Specialist Provision  
 
8.1 Wirral currently has a locally agreed mechanism that gives extra money to special 

schools that take pupils over their place number.  The mechanism is triggered when a 
school has more than five pupils above its place number.    

 
8.2 The DfE propose that it is up to school and commissioner to agree the amount of top-up 

funding if a school has a significantly higher number of pupils on roll than the number of 
places for which it is funded.   

 
8.3 We think it fair, and in the spirit of the reforms, to use the top-up to fund each pupil over 

numbers. 
 
 
Q 6: Do you have any comments on funding excess places?  
 
Responses 
1. Should use top up to fund. 
2. Fund at the same level as the other pupils, ideally on a half-term basis. 
3. Seems preferable to current trigger to use top up to fund each pupil over numbers. 
4. Agree top up would be fair but suggest LA should better manage numbers to avoid 

excess and surplus places. 
5. Seems preferable to current trigger 
6. Seems fair. 
7. Good idea 
8. Yes, agree 
9. Amount should include place and top up. 
10. Excess places should not be funded 
11. Use top up 
12. Yes, fund with top up 
13. Yes, use top up 
14. If place is needed it should be provided 
15. No comment 
16. Use top up 
17. Need to work harder to match pupils and places in all provision  
18 Agree –use top up 
19 Agree – top up 
20 Agree 
21 Excess places should be funded as full places. 
 
Recommendation 6 
Excess places in specialist provision is funded on the basis of the high 
 need pupil top-up. 

Page 43



 
 
9. Reviewing the Number of Places in Specialist Provision 
 
9.1 The Education Funding Agency (EFA) is proposing a two year reviewing cycle to 

determine future changes to the number of planned places in special schools and 
specialist provision.  The new reviewing arrangements for LAs to plan places with the 
EFA regularly produce a reviewing cycle for the number of specialist places needed. 

 
9.2 Since the Autumn Term 2010 the LA has been involved with the Schools Forum, 

governing bodies and headteachers of all Wirral special schools in developing a process 
of managing surplus places in special schools that involves reducing surplus places or 
using the money to re-commission the school with surplus places to provide something 
different.   

 
 
Q 7: Should the work developing a reviewing cycle of the number of surplus places be 

amended to include considerations about excess demand and thus trends in either 
direction to integrate with the EFA arrangements? 

 
Responses 
1. Yes 
2. On an annual basis as per the current agreement. 
3. Timing of budget adjustment needs careful consideration; could be chaotic and 

destabilising to change monthly or each half –term.  Regular adjustments to staffing will 
make recruitment and retention of specialists difficult. 

4. Two year trends important. 
5. Yes.  Makes similar points at to 3 above and cites Salt’s Review of PMLD training and 

need to retain specialist staff. 
 
6. Yes, should be explored. 
7. Yes 
8. Yes, underpinned by clearer strategic direction 
9. No comment 
10. Yes 
11. Yes 
12. Yes 
13. Yes 
14.  Biggest needs must be identified and monies allocated 
15. No comment 
16 Yes 
17 Yes, makes sense 
18 Yes 
19 Yes 
20 Hope that the new arrangements and realistic place numbers then future adjustments will 

be minimal. 
21. Argues more work needs doing to be clear how this would work. 
 
Recommendation 7 
The current local arrangements for reviewing surplus places are amended to keep all 
 places under review and integrated with EFA arrangements. 
 
 
 

Page 44



10 Exceptional Needs   
 
10.1 Currently, there is a local agreement that maintained special schools can access a 

centrally held budget of £480,000 for pupils who have exceptional needs - and/or are at 
risk of exclusion - and/or may need an out-of-borough place.  The budget has been 
stretched for a number of years. It is proposed to place this money in top-up funding 
where it can honour existing exceptional needs commitments.  

 
10.2 In line with the underpinning principles funding should not be seen as fixed, but subject to 

review if a pupils’ or students needs’ change.  In the future any change to funding would 
occur as a result of a review.  For instance, using the illustrative banding model a review 
could mean funding at the higher adjacent band.  In the illustrative example of ‘low’ 
‘medium’ and ‘high’ needs banding then a review would mean moving to the next 
banding so a pupil in ‘low’ moves to ‘medium’; a pupil in ‘medium’ moves to ‘high’; and 
pupils in access ‘high plus’ that is currently only accessed by non-maintained 
independent placements. 

 
Q 8: Do you agree with this suggestion?  If not, what are your views about the future 

use of this budget?   
 
Responses 
1. Should be opened to bases with reps on the panel 
2. Budget with a ceiling and stringent reviewing. 
3. Seems sensible but would need very clear criteria.  OoB should be avoided unless 

absolutely necessary. 
4. Accepts logic of the suggestion but stresses any system must be transparent controlled. 
5. Suggests need to look at triggers, especially at home, for OoB placement and see 

whether things like shared care can help manage this. 
6. Yes 
7. Yes 
8. Current budget insufficient; independent review of processes needed. 
9. Does not agree as the adjacent band may not meet pupil’s needs.  Suggest new 

provision opened to save pupils going OoB. 
10. It helps to stabilise budgets, we have needed this trigger in the past 
11. Yes 
12. No comment 
13. Yes, I agree. 
14. Yes 
15. No comment 
16. Should be opened up to bases with representation on panel 
17 Yes 
18 Yes 
19 Yes, include mainstream bases on panel 
20 Yes, it fits with principle 3. 
21 Access to high plus for all C&YP in CLD sector needed as the high band of £8 for the 

sector is not realistic. 
 
Recommendation 8 
The exceptional needs budget is placed in the high needs block to honour existing 
agreements, and in future the monies will be used to fund top-ups. 
 
 
 
11 Place Numbers for Specialist Provision 2013-14 

Page 45



 
 

11.2 As part of authorities’ work with the EFA on calculating the baseline for the high needs 
block we will need to determine the number of places in maintained specials schools and 
in resourced provision or units in maintained schools for 2013-2014.   
 

11.3 Table C shows the number of current places.   Any amendments to this must be 
discussed with the EFA in July 2012.    
 

11.4 In keeping with our statutory duty to keep provision constantly under review we are 
currently in varying stages of discussion and planning with a number of providers about 
place numbers, therefore we need to consult with you about whether or not to continue 
with our plans and discuss amendments to the 2013 baseline with EFA shortly. 
 
i) This means that measures have been put in place for The Lyndale Primary 

Special School and Foxfield Secondary Special School to have their budgets 
reduced in September 2012 and the number of their places reduced by five in 
April 2013. 

 
Q 9: Should we move ahead with the locally planned changes to Lyndale and Foxfield’s 

number of places or not? What are your views? 
 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes, Foxfield with 125-130 would be preferable. 
4. Yes, but also refers to primary CLD position. 
5. Yes, but only if we have a clear view of pattern of places over the next few years. 
6. Yes 
7. Yes 
8. Inappropriate to comment. 
9. Yes 
10. Yes 
11. Do not agree with places and budgets being reduced 
12. Yes 
13. Yes 
14. Yes 
15.  No comment 
16 Yes 
17 Strong argument number should be further reduced.  Continuous review needed 
18 Not sure – may need the places in the future 
19 Yes 
20 Inappropriate to comment on Foxfield.  In Lyndale’s case 28-30 places is realistic but 

only viable if top up is increased to say £20,000 per pupils 
21. Yes. 
 
Recommendation 9 
The Authority move ahead with the locally planned changes to reduce the number of 
 places by five each at Foxfield Secondary Special School and The Lyndale Primary 
 Special School. 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 46



ii) The LA had intended to present a paper to the Schools Forum in July 2012 
proposing an increase in the number of places at Gilbrook Primary Special School 
from 50 to 55.  This is because the number of pupils on roll has been regularly 
above this number over recent years and a clear trend in the need for provision 
has been established. 

 
Q 10: What are your views about the Gilbrook proposal? Should the LA proceed? 
 
Responses 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
4. Yes 
5. Yes 
6. Yes 
7. Yes 
8. Inappropriate to comment. 
9. Yes 
10. Yes 
11. Yes 
12 Yes 
13. Yes 
14. Yes 
15. No comment 
16 Yes 
17 Yes 
18 Yes 
19 Yes 
20 Not appropriate to comment. 
21. Yes 
 
Recommendation 10 
The Authority move ahead with the increase to the number of places at Gilbrook Primary 
Special  School from 50 to 55 April 2013. 
 

 
 

iii) Preliminary discussions have also been undertaken with Rock Ferry Primary 
School about the future of the base commissioned for pupils with moderate 
learning difficulties and whether it would like to consider changing its designation 
to another type of SEN.  This is because there is a clear downward trend in the 
numbers of pupils attending the base. 

 
Q 11: Should the LA propose closure of this provision for the end of the academic year 

2013? 
 
Responses 
1. No 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
4. Raises a question about decrease in MLD elsewhere possibly affecting need to retain 

this provision. 
5. Yes. 
6. Yes 

Page 47



7. Yes 
8. Unable to comment 
9. Yes 
10. Yes 
11. Yes 
12 Yes 
13. No comment 
14. Yes – money should fund needs e.g. Soc Comm 
15 No comment 
16 Suggests alternatives use such as Orrets pilot or likelihood of pupils not getting into 

Hayfield 
17 yes 
18 Yes – use money for a KS2 behaviour base 
19 No – provision still needed 
20 Not appropriate to comment. 
21. Yes 
 
Recommendation 11 
The Authority move ahead with the proposal to close the Education Inclusion Base at 
Rock Ferry Primary School at the end of the academic year 2013. 
 

iv) Elleray Park School has been over its place number for the last three years.  In 
the January census for 2012 it had 84 pupils, in 2011 78 and in 2010 76 pupils. 

 
Q 12: Should the LA consider approaching the EFA to increase its place number to 80? 
 
Responses 
1. Yes 
2. Not sufficient, should be higher. 
3. Yes 
4. Asks about overall plan for CLD and asks LA to more actively manage numbers. 
5. Yes, but only if we have a clear view of pattern of places over the next few years. 
6. Yes 
7. Yes 
8. Unable to comment 
9. Yes 
10. Surely LA can see what the place number will be over time. 
11. No comment 
12.  Yes 
13. Yes 
14. Yes 
15.  No comment 
16. Yes 
17 yes 
18 Yes 
19 Yes 
20 Not appropriate to comment 
21 Yes 
 
Recommendation 12 
The Authority move ahead to increase the place number at Elleray Park from 75 to 80 in 
April 2013. 
 
 

Page 48



12. Place-Plus in Mainstream Schools 
 
Under a place-plus approach high needs funding will comprise three elements, which can 
be applied across all provision for high needs pupils and students. 
 
i) Element 1 or “core education funding, this is the basic unit of per pupil funding - 

the age weighted pupil unit or AWPU (post 16 this is the national funding per 
student). The amount is deemed to be around £4,000. 

 
ii) Element 2 or “additional support funding”. Schools receive funding for additional 

SEN support in the form of units of resource. The first 5 units are included in the 
delegated budget. From 2013-14 the sum that schools will be expected to 
contribute as a national minimum will be £6,000 (Post 16 this is directed through 
National Formula Funding for Additional Learner Support – ALS). 

 
iii) The total of Element 1 and 2 therefore is £10,000 and matches the proposed 

place funding within special schools.  Element 3 or “top-up funding” above 
£10,000 to meet the total cost of provision will be paid by the LA (commissioner). 

 
 

13. Notional SEN Budget  
 
For pupils with statements and to align Wirral with the nationally suggested figure for 
element 2 we propose to delegate a further £250,000 so that the additional support 
schools are deemed to contribute from their delegated budget is £6,000.  That means 
Wirral’s five units of support will be increased in value from £5,665 to £6,000.It will also 
result in a corresponding reduction in the value if support in excess of £6,000. 

 
Q 13: Do you agree with increased value of the individually assigned pupil units? 
 
Responses 
1. Yes 
2. Yes 
3. Yes 
4. Yes 
5. Yes 
6. Yes 
7. Yes 
8. Yes 
9. Yes 
10. Not when 50% of special schools are losing budgets. 
11. Yes 
12. Yes, but increase needs to be bigger 
13. Yes 
14. Challenging consultation but hope new system equitable, fair and right for all children 
15. No comment 
16 Yes 
17 Yes 
18 Yes 
19 Yes 
20 Agree 
21 Yes 
 
Recommendation 13 

Page 49



The sum of £250, 000 is delegated to mainstream schools so that Wirral’s five units of 
individually assigned support is increased in value form £5,665 to £6,000. 
 
 
 
Q 14: Are there are any other comments you wish to add? 
 
Responses 
1.  
2. Want a fair and equitable system that encourages forward planning.  
3. Certainty and predictability of funding is necessary for schools to make effective 

provision, but schools do not control admissions.  There is a danger of developing 
funding that is reactive and fails to recognise the longer term needs of each school and 
impact negatively on current high standards.  LA must do more to discourage 
mainstream moving pupils into special. 

4. Proposal would not support current school population or support needs to avoid 
exclusion. 

5. Disagrees that the proposals will bring stability and predictability as Gov suggest.  
Envisages chaos. 

6. Points out AWPU is less than £4k in many schools.  Also points out that special school 
do not have a lump as is the case with mainstream schools. 

7.  No 
8. Additional numbers should not prejudice the education of existing pupils. 
9. No comments here but letter submitted arguing need for BESD to be in highest top up 

band. 
10. Letter attached by HT expressing concern about loss of specialist schools funding.  Also 

appended are the last Specialist Reports showing the impact of the specialism locally 
and nationally. 

11.  No 
12. No comment 
13. No comment 
14. No comment 
15 No comment 
16. Points out budget and adjustment for RF EIB do not agree 
17 Numbers in Orrets needs review 
18 No comment 
19 No comment 
20 Disappointed that national definitions of need and funding bands not addressed.  

Dismayed by recent experience with the Health Authorities rejections to contribution to 
the needs of pupils as it is contrary to principle five. 

21 Argues that the school needs capital funding to modernise its provision. 
 
There are no recommendations arising from this question. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 50



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM   - 25th September 2012 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
 
SCHOOL REDUNDANCIES – ACADEMIC YEAR 2011-12  
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1. Redundancy Costs 

1.1 The overall cost for redundancies in Wirral maintained schools has decreased in 
2011-12 compared to 2010-11. (Appendix 1) 

 
1.2 The explanation is that a number of schools have made significant staffing 

reductions in the previous academic year and have managed further staffing 
reduction through effective workforce planning and voluntary measures. 

 
2. Support Staff in Maintained Schools 

 
2.1 There has been a significant increase in the number of support staff subject to 

voluntary or compulsory redundancy. (Appendix 1) 
 
2.2 The explanation for the increase is a number of schools did not make the same level 

of staffing reduction in the support staff area in the last academic year. In addition 
there has been a number of fixed term contracts which have not been renewed by 
schools and re-organisation of an afterschool club by the governing body. 

 
2.3  The total number of support staff subject to voluntary or compulsory redundancy in 

maintained schools was 55,  compared to 30 staff  in the previous academic year 
 

 
3. Teachers in Maintained Schools 

3.1 There has been a decrease in the level of teachers subject to voluntary or 
compulsory redundancy (Appendix 1) 

 
3.2  The explanation for the reduction in the number of staff is that, a number of 

schools made significant staffing teaching reductions in the previous academic year 
and have managed further staffing reduction through effective workforce planning 
and voluntary measures.  

 
3.3 The total number of teaching staff subject to voluntary or compulsory redundancy in 

maintained schools was 17, compared to 42 in the previous academic year 
 
4. Academies  

4.1 Two academies made a number of voluntary and compulsory redundancies across 
both teacher and support staff. (appendix 1) 

 
4.2 The total number of staff made redundant in those schools totalled 21 staff, a slight 

increase from 15 staff in the last academic year. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 51



5. Projection on Redundancy Costs  
 
5.1 It is anticipated that the costs of redundancy will continue to rise in the future. This is 

due to  
•••• The continued  reduction in pupil numbers in the  secondary sector 
•••• The  significant changes in school funding  formula including 6th form and SEN 
•••• No increase in school budgets – reduction in real terms  
•••• Potential changes to School Curriculum requirements 

  
5.2 From April 2013 it will not be possible for the Schools Forum to ‘ring fence’ monies to 

support the cost school redundancies. The current amount allocated to school 
redundancies in the LA budget is £378k. An additional £265K is also allocated from the 
schools closure budget as agreed by Schools Forum last year. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. To note the contents of the report . 
 
 
Julia Hassall 
Acting Director of Children’s Services 

Page 52



School Redundancy – Summary Sheet   Appendix 1 
 

Cost of School Redundancies in Maintained Schools 
 

 LA School Total 
 
2010- 11 

 
£810,673.66 

  
£810,673.66 

 
2011-12 £409,113.05 

 
£130,152.75 

 
£539,265.80 

 
Difference  

 

  
£271,407.86 

 
 

Number of School/Academy staff subject to Redundancy 
 

Total Number of Staff  
 2010-11 2011-12 
Maintained Schools 72 72 
Academies 15 21 
Total  87 93 

 
MAINTAINED SCHOOLS 

Support staff 
2010-11  

(6 Maintained schools) 
2011-12  

(12 Maintained Schools) 
Voluntary 6 22 
Compulsory 24 (9 End FTC) 33 
 Total 30 55 

   
 

Teachers 
2010-11  

(12 Maintained Schools) 
2011-12  

(5 Maintained Schools) 
   
Voluntary 27 14 
Compulsory 15 (6 End FTC) 3 
 Total 42 17 

 
ACADEMIES 

 
2010-11  

(2 Academies) 
2011-12  

(2 Academies) 
Teachers   
Voluntary 7 1 

Compulsory 1 9 
  8 10 

   

 
2010-11  

(1 Academy) 
2011-12  

(1 Academy) 
Support staff   
Voluntary 7 9 
Compulsory 0 2 
  7 11 

 Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
 
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM   25th September 2012 
 
REPORT OF THE ACTING DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
 
The impact of the School Intervention Grant and contribution to School Improvement 
allocations 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 
This report outlines the expenditure and impact of School Budget contributions in the 
following areas: 

• School Intervention £674,500 
• School Improvement £359,900 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1.  School Intervention 
The School Intervention contribution of £674,500 has been and is being spent on 4 main 
areas of support for schools: 

1.1 Primary School intervention     £375,300 
1.2 Secondary school intervention    £171,400 
1.3 Post-16 school intervention       £97,200 
1.4 Supporting Early Years Statutory Assessments    £30,600 

 
1.1  Primary School Intervention 

A total of £375,300 including £17,000 for leading teachers, was allocated for school 
improvement in primary schools. A substantial amount of this money, £191,000 has been 
used to support vulnerable schools identified as Band 4 in line with the Local Authority 
School Improvement Strategy. Each school receiving financial support was required to 
work with a Principal Manager from the School Improvement Team to generate a School 
Action Plan with clear measureable milestones. Progress towards achieving the 
milestones are reviewed each term through the School Causing Concern process. Results 
at the end of the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS), Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2 
were analysed in August to determine progress in raising pupil attainment. 
 
In addition £20,000 was allocated to deliver training and support for mathematics and 
English intervention programmes in Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2.  
 
£10,000 has been allocated to a pilot programme for the development of English and 
Mathematics subject leaders so that school staff are well prepared for subject specific 
Ofsted inspections. Forty subject leaders from twenty schools are attending cohort 1. 
Demand is such that a further two cohorts are running supported by the CPD service level 
agreement Education Quality (EQ). This will ensure that schools have the best possible 
chance of being graded at least good by Ofsted. 
 
A further £40,000 has been allocated for school to school support. The money will be 
divided equally across the five Headteacher cluster groups. Headteachers will work 

Agenda Item 8

Page 55



collaboratively to determine strategies to use the budget to raise attainment in a specific 
area. 
 
The remaining budget has been kept as contingency to support schools who are judged by 
the revised Ofsted framework (September 2012) as ‘requiring improvement’, or in serious 
weaknesses or special measures. 
 

1.2  Secondary School Intervention 
There are three elements to secondary intervention contribution: 

1. Support for mainstream maintained secondary schools that are Band 2 in line with 
the Local Authority School Improvement Strategy. 

2. Continuation of the ‘100 Club’ project for a second year aimed at narrowing the key 
stage 4 attainment gaps (at 5+ A*-C including English and maths GCSEs) between 
FSM pupils and non-FSM pupils. 

3. A Raising Attainment for Disadvantaged Youngsters Pilot. 
 
The amounts for these three areas have yet to be finalised as this is dependent on the 
final banding of secondary schools in line with agreed LA processes and the school 
improvement contributions.  This should be achieved by mid-October.  Also the detailed 
analysis of the second year of the ‘100 Club’ project has yet to be done as the KS4 GCSE 
pupil-level data has not yet been released. 
 

1.3  Post-16 school intervention 
£56,550 of this will be spent on providing the U Explore online tool for student information, 
advice and guidance, plus training and support for all secondary schools. 
The remaining budget will be allocated for KS5 intervention. 
 

1.4  Supporting Early Years Statutory Assessments 
This has been used to support Early Years statutory assessments in the summer term. 
 
2.  School Improvement 
The school improvement contribution of £359,900 towards the Council school 
improvement, has been and is being spent on the following areas in line with the School 
Forum report of the 24th January 2012: 

• Primary Consultants who work with targeted schools 
• Entitlement School Improvement Associates 
• Part-funding of an Educational Analyst 
• Contribution towards Governor Support Services 
• Evolve 
• ‘100 Club’ project 
• Post-16 narrowing the gap project 
• Contribution to Acre Lane for the delivery of training, resources and equipment 

and utilisation by maintained schools 
• Redesign of the Data Portal 

 

Page 56



IMPACT 
This year’s funding by School Forum and the amounts previously agreed have supported 
the aggregated school outcomes to be: 
 

1. Provisional attainment results at the end of EYFS, Key Stage 1, Key Stage 2, Key 
Stage 4 and Key Stage are the highest ever for Wirral. 

 
2. The gap between pupils in receipt of free school meals and non free school meals 

has narrowed at the end of each primary key stage. 
 

3. Attainment against the 3 primary floor target measures (English & Mathematic L4+, 
2 levels progress in English and 2 levels progress in Mathematics) has increased 
this year meeting the Local Authority FFTD targets. 
 

4. At the time of writing this report at least 70% of primary, secondary and special 
schools have been judged as good or better which is well above national averages. 

 
5. No maintained schools are currently in an Ofsted category. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.  Schools Forum to note the report. 
 
 
 
 
Julia Hassall 
Acting Director of Children’s Services 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM   25th September 2012 
 
REPORT OF THE ACTING DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
 
Changes to the Looked after Children’s Education Service 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The way in which the Looked after Children’s Education Service (LACES) is delivered and 
supports the education of children in the Councils care was reviewed last year. 
 
The report informs Schools Forum of the current position of the Wirral Looked after 
Children’s Education Service (LACES) in assisting to discharge the local authority’s 
statutory duty to promote the educational achievement of young people in care. 
 
Introduction 
 
 
Statutory Guidance 
 
The Children Act 2004 places a statutory duty on local authorities to promote the 
educational achievement of children in care.  
 
This requires local authorities to: 

• Rigorously track and monitor the school placement and educational 
performance of each child in care. 

• To ensure that their education is seen as a priority by all those who work with 
them 

• To act, where necessary, to address underachievement and to promote 
improvement in outcomes 

• To ensure that heads and designated teachers in schools know who is looked 
after and what can  be done to support and enhance their attainment and to 
ensure access to any initiatives which will help with this 

• Ensure that they have a high quality PEP 
• Share effective practice with colleagues to improve behaviour, and 

attendance, and to promote improved outcomes and school stability and 
address barriers to learning. 

• Lead on devising and delivering training about the needs of looked after 
children, current legislation and guidance for all local authority staff and 
schools 

• Ensure that the achievements of looked after children are recognised and 
celebrated 

 
“Discharging the duty on a day to day basis means that the local authority should do at least 
what any good parent would do to promote their child’s educational aspirations and support 
their achievements” 
 
The Statutory Duty on Schools Governing Bodies 
 

• The Children and Young Person’s Act 2008 “places a duty on the governing 
bodies of maintained schools to designate a member of staff as having 
responsibility to promote the educational achievement of looked after children 

Agenda Item 9

Page 59



who are registered pupils at the school. This includes those aged between 16 
and 18”. The Regulations requires that this person should be a senior teacher 
(The Designated Teacher) 

• The governing body must ensure that the Designated Teacher undertakes 
appropriate Training 

• The role of the Designated teacher “needs to be understood as part of the 
wider responsibilities on local authorities for looked after children both in terms 
of their care and to promote their educational achievement” 

 
Designated teachers lead within the school in promoting the educational achievements of 
children in care by ensuring that their “personal, emotional and academic needs are 
prioritised. As well as this strategic role they have a duty to ensure that Personal Education 
Plans are effective and that they are implemented within the school. They are the primary 
contact co-ordinating the work of external agencies in relation to promoting the educational 
achievement of looked after children on the school’s role. 
 
Current arrangements 
 
The roles and responsibilities within the LACES team have been reviewed to more closely 
reflect the council’s statutory duties and a formal restructuring process with the existing 
team has taken place. The new arrangements are now formally in place. Moving forward 
the LACES team will consist of one Virtual School Headteacher, two senior educational 
progress officers (one to be seconded to Fostering Futures), five (FTE) educational 
progress officers and two admin assistants. The Virtual School Headteacher role is shared 
between a Primary School Headteacher and a Secondary School Headteacher. The focus 
of the roles of the LACES team is to: 
 
1. Track, Monitor and Challenge  
 
The Educational Progress Officers will review the educational progress of each Looked 
After Child on a termly basis.  The results of these reviews will be shared with social 
workers to enable them to update the Personal Education Plan between annual PEP 
Meetings.  
 
2. Personal Education Planning 
 
The statutory responsibility for Personal Education Planning is shared by schools and social 
workers. 
 
Social workers will manage Personal Education Plans using the new social care database 
ICS (Integrated Children’s System) and they will liaise directly with schools’ designated 
teachers. In exceptional circumstances, if invited by the social worker or schools designated 
teacher, the LACES team will support the completion of the PEP. 
 
There is a statutory requirement to monitor the quality of the Personal Education Plan. This 
role will be performed by the LACES Team. 
 
3. Training 
 
The Virtual School Head will commission and deliver training that supports the educational 
needs of children in care for school and local authority staff (Designated Teachers, social 
workers and foster carers etc) 
 
 

Page 60



4. Supporting Pupils 
 
Schools requiring a service that delivers direct support to pupils, such as that formerly 
delivered by the learning mentor, are able to  purchase a bespoke service direct through the 
LA traded service EQ. During the Academic year 2011-12 this facility was not taken up by 
any school. During the current academic year and were capacity allows the LACES team 
will support pupils in negotiation with schools. 
 
Arrangements will remain is place to allocate and distribute the PEA (Personal Education 
Allowance) for those children who have fallen behind considerably and who need additional 
support programmes beyond those normally available in school. Applications for PEA will 
be managed by the LACES team and recommendations will be made to the appropriate 
Social Care manager for agreement. 
 
Pupil Premium – the LACES budget also records the grants paid to Looked After Children 
who do not attend Wirral Schools (estimated to be £36,200). Grants are allocated based on 
information received as part of Census data. Pupil Premium in respect of LAC at Wirral 
Schools is paid directly to the schools concerned (£162,000 in 2011-12) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Funding 
 
The LACES budget for 2012-13 is £423,800. It is funded as follows: 
      £ 
 Schools Budget  185,500 
 Children’s Services 202,100 
 Pupil Premium                     36,200 
 Total 423,800 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. That Schools Forum notes the report. 
 
 
 
Julia Hassall 
Acting Director of Children’s Services 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM   25th September 2012 
 
REPORT OF THE ACTING DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
 

WIRRAL LA HOME EDUCATION SERVICE 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report outlines the statutory basis of the service, a description of the current service, a 
profile of its current students, and the budgets for the last two years. 
 
Basis of the Service 
 
The Home Education Service is a response to Section 9 of the Education Act 1966, which 
states that “each Local Authority shall make arrangements for the provision of suitable 
education for those children of compulsory school age who by reasons of illness may not for 
any period receive suitable education unless such arrangements are made for them”. 
 
‘Access to Education’ (Guidance 2001) states that pupils “unable to attend school because 
of their medical needs should not be at home without access to education for more than 15 
working days”.  There is a minimum entitlement of 5 hours teaching per week up to a 
maximum of 10 hours per week.  Access to this entitlement will be dependant on the pupil’s 
medical condition.   
 
 
Scope of the Service 
 
The Service works with students aged from 5 to 16 years of age.  In 2013 the service this 
will change and provision will need to be made for students aged 5 to 17 years and will 
have budgetary implications. 
 
Referral for Home Education on the grounds of medical need has to be made by a 
Consultant.  
 
The vision statement of the Service is called “Working in Partnership for Continuity in 
Education”.  The Services’ main aim is to minimise the disruption to a young person’s 
education by working closely with his/her school so that he/she has access to the National 
Curriculum and feels confident when the time comes to return to school.  The young person 
remains on their school roll.  Re-integration after a long period of illness is supported by the 
Service working with schools and providing flexible arrangements, which take account of 
the young person’s needs and wishes.  This may include both school attendance and some 
Home Education.  
 
The Service is currently free to schools; however, for those young people who are going to 
remain on Home Teaching for the whole of Year 11 a claim is made from the students’ 
school for the AWPU. 

 
The Headteacher of the Wirral Hospitals’ School (which consists of Arrowe Park Children’s 
Ward, Adcote House, Joseph Paxton and the ‘Seedlings’ provision) is also the Headteacher 

Agenda Item 10

Page 63



of the Home Education Service. This means that there is an opportunity for a seamless 
pathway from hospital admission to home education and eventually a return to school.  
The Service is based at the Joseph Paxton Campus in Claughton. 
 
Profile of the Students 
 
The client profile for the service has changed over the years due to the change in medical 
treatment and the increasing ability of schools to cope with children who are temporarily 
confined to a wheelchair. There are now less young people who need Home Education 
because of broken bones.  
 
There has been an increase in the number of students suffering from severe anxiety, 
depression and chronic fatigue. These are usually long term illnesses and require a long 
period of involvement from the service working closely with mental health services. 
 
The Service works Connexions where students are n years 10 and 11 to ensure post 16 
provision is in place and that they continue in education, employment or training.  
 
The Service also provides bespoke education packages for young people who cannot 
attend school for non-medical reasons.   
 
 
Budget 
 
The nature of the Service is that the requirements of any one year are unpredictable, and 
budget figures are always based on previous years. 
 

2010-2011  Budget   £285, 685.00 

 

2011-2012  Budget  £267, 546.00 

 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Forum is asked to note the report 
 
 
 
 
Julia Hassall 
Acting Director of Children’s Services 

Page 64



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
 
WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM   25th September 2012 
 
REPORT OF THE ACTING DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
 
Funding High Needs Students aged 16-24 Update 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The purpose of this report is to provide an update about funding high needs (SEN) students 
aged 16 -25 years.  This follows a report to Forum in September 2011 “Transfer of 
Responsibility and Funding from the Young Peoples’ Funding Agency (YPLA) to the Local 
Authority for Special educational Needs/Learners with Learning Difficulties and Disabilities 
Post 16.”  That report drew attention to the proposed changes and also pointed out 
budgetary pressures.   
 
1. Budgetary Position 
 

i SEN Block Grant to LA from YPLA 
In 2011-12 it was £1,434,900 and this year is £1,416,300.  Costs continue to 
exceed resources and a further £1million is currently spent from the 
Dedicated Schools Grant to fund post 16 SEN provision in sixth forms. 

 
ii Additional Learning Support in the Further Education Sector 

In 2011-12 the notional budget was approximately £1million and our spend is 
now approximately £800,000. 

 
iii Independent Specialist Providers 

In 2011-12 Wirral’s spend was £1.7million.  This year it is estimated to be just 
under £1 million. 

 
New funding arrangements will begin in April 2013 when funds will transfer to the LA.  It is 
highly likely that budgetary pressures will remain in all areas. 

 

2. Update on Progress 

i. On 2nd August 2012 the Local Authority received a letter from the Department 
for Education requesting we confirm that current baseline learner data 
(2010/11) was  correct and that we forecast learner numbers for 2012/13 and 
2013/14.  This is to enable the Local Authority final allocation for 2013/14 to 
be more accurate for high needs students.  

We have been asked to provide this by the 30th September 2012. 

ii Work is being carried out to check the accuracy of the baseline data provided 
by the Education Funding Agency (EFA) through the Council’s SEN team, 
Management Information (Data) team and directly with local institutions 
(schools, academies and colleges).  

iii Based on the baseline data, the Local Authorities 14-19 team have either, met 
or written, to all local schools, colleges and out of borough providers to check 

Agenda Item 11

Page 65



if Wirral students attend. All the information is to be returned by the 19th 
September 2012.  This information will then be collated, checked and 
submitted. We have also asked for an estimate of the costs associated with 
this learning.  

  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Report be noted   
 
 
 
 
Julia Hassall 
Acting Director of Children’s Services 

Page 66



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
SCHOOLS FORUM – 25th SEPTEMBER 2012  
 
REPORT OF INTERIM DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
PROVISION OF INSURANCE SERVICES TO SCHOOLS 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
This report summarises the insurance and ancillary services currently made 
available to schools. It explains how charges are calculated and describes 
some of the future influences on the services. 
 
BACKGROUND 
For many years the authority has offered schools a package of insurance and 
ancillary services (such as claims handling, plant inspection and risk 
management support). With the delegation of the relevant budget several 
years ago, insurance is now provided as a traded service.  
The package of covers has been improved and extended over time and now 
includes - 
Liability (Public / Employers / Officials Indemnity / Libel and Slander) 
Property (Buildings and contents) 
Equipment 
Business Interruption (increased cost of working and loss or revenue) 
Money 
Fidelity Guarantee 
Engineering (Inspection and Insurance) 
Personal Accident 
Motor 
Glazing 
Additional services have also been introduced. These include a ‘risk ranking’ 
programme supported by the Department for Education through which 
schools are visited to assess their management of a range of insurable risks. 
The assessment is scored, resulting in each school being ranked against the 
others. An individual report is also prepared highlighting areas of good 
practice and issues requiring improvement.  
 
CURRENT POSITION / UPDATE 
At present all primary (both controlled and voluntary aided) and special 
schools purchase their insurance through the authority. Other than 
academies, all secondary schools also buy into the authority’s insurance 
programme. 
Under the Government’s ‘Academies’ programme half of the secondary 
schools have now converted to academy status or are in the process of doing 
so. The legal status of such schools means that they cannot participate in the 
authority’s existing insurance programme. However academies have been 
taking advantage of the facility under which the authority’s Risk & Insurance 
team can support them with procuring cover from respected insurers and 
continue to assist with claims handling and the provision of insurance and risk 
management advice in a similar way to before. It is important to note that the 

Agenda Item 12

Page 67



insurance costs for an individual academy are significantly higher than for 
schools covered by the authority’s programme. On average schools 
converting face a doubling of their costs in this area.  
More schools are expected to become academies in the coming years. Whilst 
this should reduce the exposure to loss under the authority’s insurance 
programme, the effect is not necessarily pro-rata. So charges for those 
schools that remain in the common ‘pool’ could increase as economies of 
scale reduce. 
 
FUNDING 
Individual charges are calculated for each type of insurance for each school. 
The method of calculation has been refined over the years to ensure equity 
for each school. For the major classes of business the premium comprises 
two main elements - the value at risk (such as building values or payroll) and 
the school’s claims experience. For some minor classes of business (such as 
glazing) the premium is essentially determined by the claims history. The Risk 
& Insurance team recovers its charges by adding an on-cost (9.1% in the 
current financial year) to each school’s total premium. 
Based on 2012/13 figures average costs for different categories of school 
range from £3,400 for an Early Years Centre, £5,500 for primary and special 
schools up to approximately £24,100 for secondary schools. The average for 
schools in the authority’s PFI programme is around £4,000, in recognition that 
risks are shared with the PFI partner. 
Overall insurance costs for schools have fallen sharply in the past 3 years as 
a result of better procurement, more effective management of risk and 
improved claims handling. Several major contracts including insurance for 
buildings and contents are subject to tender before June 2013. Despite this 
overall costs are expected to remain broadly stable. However it should be 
borne in mind that the charges for an individual school can fluctuate from one 
financial year to the next according to its size and claims history. As indicated 
above the growth in academies could also place upward pressure on charges 
for remaining schools. 
 
DELEGATION TO SCHOOLS 2013-14 
Most insurance costs have been delegated to schools for some time. 
However as part of the funding arrangements for voluntary aided schools, the 
centrally held Schools Budget meets the cost of liability insurance for 
governing bodies - £65,400. Cover is arranged by the relevant Diocese and 
schools formally apply for reimbursement of their premiums, providing 
evidence of the sum paid. 
This budget will be delegated to all schools from 2013-14, unless Schools 
Forum representatives agree otherwise. This item is covered elsewhere on 
the agenda as part of the School Formula Funding Consultation. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
Peter Timmins 
Interim Director of Finance 

Page 68



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
SCHOOLS FORUM – 25th SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
REPORT OF ACTING DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
 
BREECH OF CENTRAL EXPENDITURE LIMIT 2012-13 SCHOOLS BUDGET  
 
 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
1.1 This report confirms a breach in the Central Expenditure Limit for 2012-13 

amounting to £741,000. 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND 

The Central Expenditure Limit is the limit the authority can retain from the 
Schools Budget and spend centrally on behalf of schools. The increase (or 
decrease) should match overall increases or decreases in delegated school 
budgets, unless a change has been agreed by the Schools Forum. 
 
Although a breech was not intended at the time the budget was set, the limit has 
been exceeded.  
The reasons are mainly due to the reduction in delegated school budgets 
resulting from Academy Transfers (£36m at the start of the year). As a result the 
ISB has reduced by 18% compared to last year. 
Central budgets however have only reduced by 3.1%, although all relevant 
Academy top slice budgets (LACSEG) have been adjusted. The small reduction 
reflects the continuing need and responsibility for SEN, Carbon Reduction and 
PFI as shown below.  
 
The net percentage reductions are as follows: 
Schools Budget  minus 18% 
Central Expenditure minus 3.1 % 
 
The actual changes in central expenditure are summarised below: 

                  £000   % 
 Increase required for the PFI Affordability Gap  333  1.4 
 (this is Council funded) 
 Carbon reduction Budget          71  0.3 

Reductions in: 
Schools Contingency budgets    (569)  (2.3) 

 Early Years Contingency     (284)  (1.2) 
 Academy LACSEG central budget reduction  (324)  (1.3) 

Other            32   
 Net Reduction      (741)  (3.1) 
 
5.0 RECOMMENDATION 

That the Forum approves the increase in the Central Expenditure Limit as set out 
above. 

 
Julia Hassall 
Acting Director of Children’s Services 

Agenda Item 13

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
 
WIRRAL SCHOOLS’ FORUM   25th September 2012 
 
REPORT OF THE ACTING DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
 
Wirral Schools Forum Membership 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
This report informs the group of the make up of the Schools Forum Representation.  This 
is broadly proportionate for each school phase (based on January 2012 census) and is 
consistent with School Forum Regulations. 
 
 
1. Forum Representation in each School Phase 

The table below details the total pupils in each school phase and the number of 
members this allocates. (This assumes Woodchurch High School will convert to 
Academy shortly.) 
 

 
Phase 

Pupil Numbers 
(Jan 2012 Census) 

Representatives 

Primary 23,989 10 
Secondary 10,050 4 
Academy 11,402 5 
Total 45,441 19 

 
 
2. Current Representation 
 

5 Primary Headteachers 
5 Primary Governors  
2 Secondary Headteachers 
2 Secondary Governors  
3 Academy Headteacher  
2 Academy Governor  
1 Special Headteacher 
1 Special Governors 
1 Nursery Representative 
1 Wirral Governors Forum 
23 Total Schools Membership 
1 Non-teacher representative 
1 Teacher representative 
1 Catholic Diocese 
1 Church of England Diocese 
1 14 - 19 Representative 
2 PVI Early Years Providers 
7 Total Non-Schools Membership 
30 Total Membership 

Agenda Item 14

Page 71



 
 There are 4 members who have been re-elected:- 

Gill Zsapka – Primary Headteacher 
Brian Cummings – Academy Governor 
Denise McDonald – PVI Early Years representative 
Simon Davies – PVI Early Years representative 

 
There are 5 new members:- 

Gill Pritchard – Primary Headteacher 
Mary Walker – Primary Headteacher 
Pauline Roberts – Secondary Headteacher 
Danny Stenhouse – Secondary Governor 
Kathryn Podmore – Academy Governor 
 

Morag Kophamel has agreed to extend her membership until 30th September to 
enable the Wallasey Primary Headteachers group to discuss their representation.  
 
Mike Potter resigned as the Further Education representative at the last meeting.  
This position has not yet been filled. 
 
The 2012 regulations indicates that the Forum will need to include a representative 
from WASP.  This arrangement will be put in place by April 2013. 

  
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The Forum notes the changes outlined in this report. 
  
 
Julia Hassall 
Acting Director of Children’s Services 

Page 72



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
SCHOOLS FORUM  - 25th SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
REPORT OF ACTING DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
 
MEMBER TRAINING 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
This report briefly describes two training sessions for new members that could be 
provided during October / November. 
 
BACKGROUND 
At the last meeting a request was made to provide training for new members, to help 
become familiar with the role and purpose of the Schools Forum.  
 
In addition two courses are being planned, which would be open to all members. 
Each course would last for about an hour and cover the following areas: 
 
1.  The Role of the Schools Forum. 

This would cover the Forum’s purpose, powers, makeup and workplan. 
 
2. The Schools Budget and Funding Formula 

This would give a brief outline of the make up of the overall Schools Budget and 
the Local Funding Formula 

  
 
 RECOMMENDATION 
That members consider if this would be a useful addition and indicate available 
dates. 
 
 
Julia Hassall 
Acting Director of Children's Services 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 15

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



SCHOOLS FORUM REGULATIONS 
 
1. The main changes to these regulations relate to the membership and 

proceedings of Schools Forums.  The regulations will come into force on 1 
October 2012, and Schools Forums will need to be reconstituted for this date.  

 
 Membership 
 
2. The requirement that schools and Academies should have broadly 

proportionate representation according to pupil numbers in each category is 
maintained (regulation 4(6)).  There is concern that the composition of 
Schools Forums has not changed quickly enough to reflect the pace of 
academy conversions.  Local authorities are required to ensure their Schools 
Forum is compliant with this requirement based on the pupil numbers in each 
category as of September 2012 and that this is updated as more conversions 
take place. 

 
3. There is no longer a requirement to have a minimum of 15 people on Schools 

Forum.  Smaller authorities in particular may therefore wish to review the total 
size of their Schools Forum. 

 
4. Where there is at least one maintained secondary school in an authority, at 

least one schools member must be a representative of a secondary school 
(regulation 4(7)). This is consistent with the arrangements for Academies, 
maintained nursery schools, maintained special schools and maintained Pupil 
Referral Units. Many authorities now have very few maintained secondary 
schools, so this will provide minimum representation as with other minority 
types of school. 

 
5. In order to reflect their status of having a delegated budget from April 2013, 

where the authority maintains one or more Pupil Referral Units (PRUs) they 
are required to have a representative on the Schools Forum, who counts as a 
schools member (regulations 4(10) and 5(2)(e)). 

 
6. Among the members representing maintained schools, at least one must be a 

representative of governing bodies and at least one must be a representative 
of headteachers (regulation 4(5)). This is a requirement of the primary 
legislation but has not previously been made explicit in the regulations.  

 
 Proceedings 
 
7. There will be a restriction on local authority members and officers who are not 

members of the Schools Forum taking part in its meetings (regulation 8(4)).  
Participation will be limited to a Lead Member for education, children’s 
services or resources, Director of Children’s Services (or their representative), 
Chief Finance Officer (or their representative) or officers who are providing 
specific financial or technical advice to Schools Forum.  Other officers will be 
able to participate where they are presenting a report, but their participation 
must be limited to their specific agenda item. 

 

Agenda Item 16

Page 75



8. The Education Funding Agency (EFA) has been granted observer status at 
Schools Forum meetings (regulation 8(4)(f)).  This will provide support to the 
local process and provide a national perspective if members think it helpful. 

 
9. With regards to voting, the key change is with regard to the funding formulae.  

Only schools members (which includes mainstream schools, Academies, 
special schools and PRUs) and representatives of the Private, Voluntary and 
Independent (PVI) sector will be able to vote on the funding formulae 
(regulation 8(10)). 

 
10. Additional requirements for the transparency of Schools Forum include 

holding all Schools Forum meetings in public and publishing Schools Forum 
papers, minutes and decisions in public areas of the local authority website 
(regulations 8(2) and 8(13)). 

 
11. In order to reflect the complete delegation of funding for some services, the 

requirement to consult Schools Forums annually about arrangements for free 
school meals and insurance has been removed. 

 
For further information on these regulations, please contact the Funding Reform 
Team at reformteam.funding@education.gsi.gov.uk . 

Page 76



 

 

S T A T U T O R Y  I N S T R U M E N T S  

2012 No. 2261 

EDUCATION, ENGLAND 

The Schools Forums (England) Regulations 2012 

Made - - - - 3rd September 2012 

Laid before Parliament 7th September 2012 

Coming into force - - 1st October 2012 

CONTENTS 
1. Citation, commencement, application and interpretation 1 
2. Revocation 2 
3. Constitution of schools forum 3 
4. Membership: general 3 
5. Schools members 4 
6. Academies members 4 
7. Non-schools members 4 
8. Meetings and proceedings of schools forum 5 
9. Consultation on contracts 6 
10. Consultation on financial issues 6 
11. Information about consultations 6 
12. Charging of schools forum’s expenses 7 
13. Members’ expenses 7 

The Secretary of State for Education makes the following Regulations in exercise of the powers 
conferred by sections 47A and 138(7) of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998(a): 

Citation, commencement, application and interpretation 

1.—(1) These Regulations may be cited as the Schools Forums (England) Regulations 2012 and 
come into force on 1st October 2012. 

(2) These Regulations apply only in relation to England. 

(3) In these Regulations— 

“the Act” means the School Standards and Framework Act 1998; 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) 1998 c.31. Section 47A was inserted by section 43 of the Education Act 2002 (c.32) and has been amended by paragraph 7 

of Schedule 16 to the Education Act 2005 (c.18); paragraphs 2(1), (3) and (4) of Schedule 5 and Part 6 of Schedule 18 to the 
Education and Inspections Act 2006 (c.40); section 165 of and Schedule 2 to the Education and Skills Act 2008 (c.25), 
section 194 of the Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act 2009 (c. 22) and S.I. 2010/1158. For the meaning of 
“prescribed” and “regulations” see section 142(1) of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998. 

Page 77



 

 2 

“Academies member” means a member who represents the proprietors of the Academies 
situated in the authority’s area; 

“authority” means the local authority in whose area the schools forum is established; 

“early years providers” means— 

(a) persons who are registered as early years childminders or other early years providers 
under Chapter 2 of Part 3 of the Childcare Act 2006(a) (which provides for the 
compulsory registration of persons providing early years provision) or are exempt from 
compulsory registration by order of the Secretary of State under section 33(2) or 34(3) of 
that Act, 

(b) independent schools, and 

(c) non-maintained special schools, 

who provide early years provision; 

“early years provision” has the meaning given by section 20 of the Childcare Act 2006; 

“executive member” means any elected member of the authority appointed to the executive of 
that authority; 

“governor” includes any interim executive member of an interim executive board constituted 
in accordance with paragraph 2 of Schedule 6 to the Education and Inspections Act 2006(b); 

“nursery school” means a nursery school maintained by the authority; 

“primary school” means a primary school maintained by the authority; 

“representative” means either a head teacher or a senior member of staff representing a head 
teacher or a governor of a school maintained by the authority, save for in regulation 8 where it 
means a representative of the positions mentioned in that regulation; 

“school” means a school maintained by the authority; 

“school category” means one of the following categories of school— 

(d) community schools, 

(e) foundation schools, 

(f) voluntary aided schools, 

(g) voluntary controlled schools, 

as described in Chapter 1 of Part 2 of the Act; 

“secondary school” means a secondary school maintained by the authority; 

“senior member of staff” means a principal, deputy head teacher, bursar or other person 
responsible for the financial management of the school; 

“special school” means a community special school or a foundation special school. 

(4) In these Regulations, a reference to a governing body does not include a reference to the 
temporary governing body of a new school and a reference to a governor does not include a 
reference to a member of the temporary governing body of a new school, where “new school” has 
the meaning given by section 72(3) of the Act(c). 

Revocation 

2. The Schools Forums (England) Regulations 2010(d) are revoked. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) 2006 c.21. 
(b) 2006 c.40. 
(c) Section 72(3) was amended by section 215(1) of, and paragraph 106 of Schedule 21 to, the Education Act 2002. 
(d) S.I. 2010/344, amended by S.I. 2010/1172. 

Page 78



 

 3 

Constitution of schools forum 

3. Every authority must ensure that the schools forum for their area is constituted in accordance 
with regulations 4 to 7 by 1st October 2012. 

Membership: general 

4.—(1) Subject to the following paragraphs of this regulation, an authority may determine the 
size and composition of their schools forum and the forum members’ terms of office. 

(2) A forum must comprise— 

(a) schools members elected in accordance with regulation 5; 

(b) if there are any Academies in the authority’s area, at least one Academies member elected 
or selected in accordance with regulation 6; and 

(c) non-schools members appointed in accordance with regulation 7. 

(3) If, for any reason, an election for a schools member under regulation 5(1) or an Academies 
member under regulation 6(1) does not take place by any date set by the authority or any such 
election results in a tie between two or more candidates, the authority must appoint the schools 
member or Academies member to their schools forum instead. 

(4) Schools members and Academies members must together comprise at least two thirds of the 
membership of the forum. 

(5) At least one member must be a representative of the governing bodies of maintained schools 
and at least one member must be a representative of the head teachers of such schools. 

(6) Subject to paragraphs (7) to (10), primary schools, secondary schools and Academies must 
be broadly proportionately represented on the forum, having regard to the total number of pupils 
registered at them. 

(7) Where the authority maintain one or more secondary schools, at least one schools member 
must be a representative of a secondary school. 

(8) Where the authority maintain one or more special schools, at least one schools member must 
be a representative of a special school. 

(9) Where the authority maintain one or more nursery schools, at least one schools member must 
be a representative of a nursery school. 

(10) Where the authority maintain one or more pupil referral units, at least one schools member 
must be a representative of a pupil referral unit(a). 

(11) An authority may determine that the number of members representing schools in a 
particular school category must be broadly proportionate to the total number of schools in that 
category when compared with the total number of schools. 

(12) A forum member remains in office until— 

(a) the member’s term of office expires; 

(b) the member ceases to hold the office by virtue of which the member became eligible for 
election, selection or appointment to the forum; 

(c) the member resigns from the forum by giving notice in writing to the authority; or 

(d) in the case of a non-schools member, the member is replaced by the authority, at the 
request of the body which the member represents, by another person nominated by that 
body 

(e) whichever comes first. 

(13) The authority must maintain a written record of the composition of their forum, to 
include— 

(a) the number of schools members and by which group or sub-group they were elected; 
                                                                                                                                            
(a) “Pupil referral units” has the meaning given in section 19(2B) of the Education Act 1996. 

Page 79



 

 4 

(b) the number of Academies members; and 

(c) the number of non-schools members, their terms of office, how they were chosen and 
whom they represent. 

Schools members 

5.—(1) Schools members must be elected to the schools forum by the members of the relevant 
group, or sub-group, in the authority’s area. 

(2) The groups are— 

(a) representatives of nursery schools, where there are any such schools in the authority’s 
area; 

(b) representatives of primary schools other than nursery schools; 

(c) representatives of secondary schools; 

(d) representatives of special schools, where there are any such schools in the authority’s 
area; and 

(e) representatives of pupil referral units, where there are any such schools in the authority’s 
area. 

(3) Each group referred to in paragraph (2) may consist of one or more of the following sub-
groups— 

(a) where the authority exercises its discretion under paragraph (4)(a), representatives of 
head teachers of schools in each group; 

(b) where the authority exercises its discretion under paragraph (4)(b), representatives of 
governors of schools in each group; 

(c) where the authority exercises its discretion under paragraph (4)(c), representatives of 
head teachers and governors of schools in each group. 

(4) The authority may determine that a certain number of representatives of each group must 
be— 

(a) head teachers or head teachers’ representatives; 

(b) governors; or 

(c) head teachers or head teachers’ representatives and governors. 

Academies members 

6.—(1) Academies members must be elected to the schools forum by the proprietors of the 
Academies in the authority’s area. 

(2) Where there is only one Academy in the authority’s area, the proprietor of the Academy 
must select the person who will represent them on the schools forum. 

Non-schools members 

7.—(1) The authority must appoint non-schools members to their schools forum comprising— 

(a) one or more persons to represent the local authority 14-19 partnership(a); and 

(b) one or more persons to represent early years providers. 

(2) Subject to paragraph (3) and regulation 4(4), the authority may appoint additional non-
schools members to their forum to represent the interests of other bodies. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) Section 85(2) and (3) of the Education and Skills Act 2008 (c.25) requires local authorities to include arrangements in 

respect of 14-19 education and training, in their local collaboration arrangements under section 10 of the Children Act 2004 
(c.31). 

Page 80



 

 5 

(3) Prior to making any appointment under paragraph (2), the authority must consider whether 
the following bodies should be represented on their forum— 

(a) the Diocesan Board of Education for any diocese any part of which is situated in the 
authority’s area; 

(b) the Bishop of any Roman Catholic Diocese any part of which is situated in the authority’s 
area; 

(c) where there are any schools or Academies within the authority’s area that are designated 
under section 69(3) of the Act(a) as having a religious character (other than Church of 
England or Roman Catholic schools), the appropriate faith group in respect of any such 
school or Academy. 

(4) The authority may not appoint any executive member or relevant officer of the authority to 
their forum as a non-schools member. 

(5) Within one month of the appointment of any non-schools member, the authority must inform 
the governing bodies of schools maintained by them and of Academies within their area of the 
name of the member and the name of the body that member represents. 

(6) In this Regulation “relevant officer” means— 

(a) the director of children’s services of the authority, 

(b) any officer employed or engaged to work under the management of the director of 
children’s services, other than one who directly provides education to children or who 
manages such a person, or 

(c) any officer whose work involves management of, or advice on, school funding. 

Meetings and proceedings of schools forum 

8.—(1) The schools forum must meet at least four times a year. 

(2) All meetings of the schools forum must be public meetings. 

(3) The meetings are quorate if at least two fifths of the total membership is present at the 
meeting. 

(4) The following persons may speak at meetings of the forum, even though they are not 
members of the forum- 

(a) the director of children’s services at the authority or their representative; 

(b) the chief finance officer at the authority or their representative; 

(c) any elected member of the authority who has primary responsibility for children’s 
services or education in the authority; 

(d) any elected member of the authority who has primary responsibility for the resources of 
the authority; 

(e) any person who is invited by the forum to attend in order to provide financial or technical 
advice to the forum; 

(f) an observer appointed by the Secretary of State; and 

(g) any person presenting a paper or other item to the forum that is on the meeting’s agenda, 
but that person’s right to speak shall be limited to matters related to the item that the 
person is presenting. 

(5) The members of the forum must elect a person as chair from among their number and 
determine the chair’s term of office. 

(6) The members of the forum may not elect as chair any member of the forum who is an elected 
member or officer of the authority. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) Section 69(3) also applies to independent schools (which includes Academies) by virtue of section 124B, which was 

inserted by regulations 2 and 3 of S.I. 2003/2037. 

Page 81



 

 6 

(7) The chair of the forum must decide upon an agenda for the meeting of the forum following 
consultation with members of the forum. 

(8) The authority must make arrangements to enable substitutes to attend and vote at meetings of 
the forum on behalf of schools members, Academies members and non-schools members, in 
consultation with members of the forum. 

(9) Apart from as provided for by paragraph (10) all members are entitled to vote on all matters 
put to a vote. 

(10) Non-schools members, other than those who represent early years providers, must not vote 
on matters relating to the formulae to be used by the local authority to determine the amounts to be 
allocated to schools and early years providers in accordance with regulations made under sections 
47 and 47ZA of the Act. 

(11) Subject to paragraphs (8) to (10), the members of the forum may determine their own 
voting procedures. 

(12) The proceedings of the forum are not invalidated by— 

(a) any vacancy among their number; 

(b) any defect in the election or appointment of any member; or 

(c) any defect in the election of the chair. 

(13) The authority must promptly publish all papers considered by the forum and the minutes of 
their meetings on their website. 

Consultation on contracts 

9. The authority must consult the schools forum on the terms of any proposed contract for 
supplies or services (being a contract paid or to be paid out of the authority’s schools budget(a)) 
where the estimated value of the proposed contract is not less than the threshold which applies to 
the authority for that proposed contract pursuant to regulation 8 of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2006(b) at least one month prior to the issue of invitations to tender. 

Consultation on financial issues 

10.—(1) The authority must consult the schools forum annually in respect of the authority’s 
functions relating to the schools budget, in connection with the following— 

(a) arrangements for the education of pupils with special educational needs; 

(b) arrangements for the use of pupil referral units and the education of children otherwise 
than at school; 

(c) arrangements for early years provision; 

(d) administrative arrangements for the allocation of central government grants paid to 
schools via the authority. 

(2) The authority may consult the forum on such other matters concerning the funding of 
schools as they see fit. 

Information about consultations 

11. The schools forum must inform the governing bodies of schools maintained by the authority 
of any consultation carried out by the authority under regulation 9 or 10, as soon as it reasonably 
can. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) “Schools budget” has the meaning given in section 45A(2) of the Schools Standards and Framework Act 1998. 
(b) S.I. 2006/5. 

Page 82



 

 7 

Charging of schools forum’s expenses 

12. The authority must pay the expenses of the schools forum and charge those expenses to the 
schools budget. 

Members’ expenses 

13. The authority must reimburse all reasonable expenses of members in connection with their 
attendance at meetings of the forum and charge those expenses to the schools budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Jonathan Hill 
 Parliamentary Under Secretary of State 
3rd September 2012 Department for Education 
 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 

(This note is not part of the Regulations) 

These Regulations revoke and replace the Schools Forums (England) Regulations 2010. 

Regulations 3 to 8 provide for the constitution of a schools forum in every local authority in 
England, including the election of schools members, the election or selection of Academies 
members and the appointment of non-schools members to the schools forum, their meetings and 
proceedings. The restriction on non-schools members voting, and the Secretary of State observer 
status, are new. 

Regulations 9 to 11 require the authority to consult their schools forum before entering into certain 
types of contract and annually in relation to a range of financial issues and the governing bodies of 
schools maintained by them to be informed of any such consultation. 

Regulations 12 and 13 require the authority to pay the expenses of their schools forum out of the 
schools budget and the reasonable expenses of its members. 

An impact assessment has not been produced for this instrument as no impact on the private sector 
or civil society organisations is foreseen. The impact on the public sector is minimal. 

Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



EXPLANATORY MEMORANDUM TO 

THE SCHOOLS FORUMS (ENGLAND) REGULATIONS 2012 

2012 No. 2261 
 
 
1. This explanatory memorandum has been prepared by the Department for 

Education and is laid before Parliament by Command of Her Majesty. 
 
2.  Purpose of the instrument 
 

2.1 The Schools Forums (England) Regulations 2012 (the 2012 
Regulations) set out how the membership of schools forums should be 
constituted, requirements relating to meetings of forums and their proceedings 
and financial issues on which forums must be consulted. 
 
2.2 The 2012 Regulations revoke the Schools Forums (England) 
Regulations 2010.  
 
2.3 To a degree, the 2012 Regulations re-enact provisions in the Schools 
Forums (England) Regulations 2010 (the 2010 Regulations) but there are some 
substantive changes relating to the proceedings of the forum.  

 
3. Matters of special interest to the Joint Committee on Statutory 

Instruments 
 
 3.1  None 
 
4. Legislative Context 
 
 4.1 These Regulations are made under the provisions of sections 47A and 

138(7) of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 (SSFA 1998) 
(financing of maintained schools). The instrument is being made to reflect the 
latest policy developments in school funding.  

 
  

5. Territorial Extent and Application 
 
 5.1 This instrument applies to England. 
  
6. European Convention on Human Rights 
 

As the instrument is subject to negative resolution procedure and does not 
amend primary legislation, no statement is required.  

 
7. Policy background 
 

7.1 Following two previous consultations, Ministers announced on 26 
March 2012 that there would be reforms to the school funding system from the 

Page 85



2013-14 financial year and that these would include changes to the schools 
forums regulations. 
 
7.2 Responses to the previous consultations had shown concerns that some 
forums were not operating sufficiently transparently and were too large to 
enable effective discussion. Ministers decided that regulations should be 
changed to improve confidence in the workings of forums. 
 
7.3 One of the key changes announced was that forum meetings should be 
held in public, like Council committees, and that papers and minutes should be 
published promptly on local authority websites.  
 
7.4 In response to concerns that some forum meetings were too dominated 
by local authority representatives, the decision was made that local authority 
participation in forum meetings should be restricted to the director of 
children’s services, chief finance officer or their representatives, and to the 
elected members with responsibility for children’s services, education or 
resources. It was also decided that non-schools members of the forum, with 
the exception of those representing early years private, voluntary and 
independent providers, would not be able to take part in votes on the funding 
formulae. 
 
7.5 It was also announced that the requirement to have a minimum 15 
members on the forum would be removed.  
 
7.6 The final decision was that the Secretary of State would be able to 
appoint an observer to attend schools forum meetings. The purpose of this is to 
support local decision-making through providing a national perspective, 
particularly where forum members consider this helpful or if there were 
concerns about the running of the forum. 

. 
 7.7 Most of the proposals in the draft regulations reflected these decisions 

which had previously been announced. There were, however, two new 
proposals. The first suggested that Pupil Referral Units (PRUs) should have 
separate representation on forums, as they will have delegated budgets from 
April 2013. 

 
 7.8 The second new proposal was that local authorities should no longer 

have to consult forums on arrangements for free school meals and insurance, 
as these budgets will have to be delegated from April 2013.  

 
 7.9 Ministers have also announced that they will consider making further 

changes in the future to the operation of schools forums, which may include 
setting a maximum cap on the number of members, significant reduction or 
removal of non-schools members and requiring an independent secretariat to 
service schools forums.  
 

8.  Consultation outcome 
 

Page 86



8.1 Consultation on the Schools Forum Regulations 2011 lasted from 13 
June to 11 July 2012. The consultation period was short because most of the 
changes to the regulations had already been announced following previous 
school funding consultations. 
 
8.2 There were 49 responses - 32 from local authorities, 7 from trades 
unions, 8 from national bodies, 1 from a local partnership and 1 from the 
public. 
.  
8.3 Within the 49 responses, there were 104 comments. 36 of these related 
to the decisions already announced in March and a further 19 to unamended 
provisions carried over from the 2010 regulations. No action is proposed in 
relation to these as they relate to decisions already made or will be considered 
as part of a future review of forums. 
 
8.4 There were four comments relating to the representation of Pupil 
Referral Units. One was supportive, one disagreed with the proposal while the 
others had concerns over timing or identifying a representative. As PRUs will 
be directly affected by the funding reforms, it is proposed to go ahead with 
this proposal. 
 
8.5 There were 23 comments proposing greater clarity in the regulations. 
Most of these were operational issues and these will be considered in the 
updated guidance which will be published with the regulations. 
 
8.6 There were 11 comments relating to the specific drafting of the 
regulations. Most were technical drafting amendments, but there was one 
substantive proposal. This suggested that maintained secondary schools should 
be entitled to representation if there is at least one in the local authority. The 
large number of Academy conversions in some areas means that maintained 
secondaries might not be entitled to a member under a proportionate 
calculation. This change would be consistent with the position of Academies, 
and maintained special and nursery schools.  
 
8.7 There were seven comments relating to membership, particularly the 
balance between phases within Academies members. These will be considered 
at a future review. 
 
8.8 Four comments related to the timescale for the consultation and 
implementation of the new regulations. 
  

9. Guidance 
 
 9.1 An updated guidance note is to be sent to all local authorities outlining 

the changes, together with the Regulations, and these will be published on the 
Department for Education website www.education.gov.uk.  

 
10. Impact 
 

10.1 There is no impact on business, charities or voluntary bodies.    

Page 87



 
10.2 The impact on the public sector is that local authorities must comply 
with these Regulations when operating their schools forums and that they will, 
in particular, need to ensure that meetings of schools forums are held in public 
and that papers and minutes are published on their website. The evidence, 
however, from discussions with local authorities is that most already do so.  

 
10.3 An Impact Assessment has not been prepared for this instrument, but 
an Equality Impact Assessment was produced alongside the consultation 
documents published on 26 March 2012 and 28 June 2012. The Impact 
Assessment can be accessed here: 
http://media.education.gov.uk/assets/files/pdf/s/school%20funding%20equia.p
df 

 
11. Regulating small business 

 
11.1  The legislation does not apply to small business.  
 

12. Monitoring & review 
 

12.1 The regulatory framework will be considered as part of the continuing 
review of  school funding and potential movement towards a future national 
funding formula.  
 
12.2 The changes will be monitored through the usual contact which the 
Funding Reform Team within the Department for Education has with schools 
and local authorities. It will log and review any correspondence from schools 
and local authorities relating to the instrument. 
 
12.3 The Secretary of State has the power to appoint observers to schools 
forums and they will also be able to monitor the implementation of the 
instrument.  

 
13.  Contact 
 
 Keith Howkins at the Department for Education Tel: 020 7227 5163 or email: 

keith.howkins@education.gsi.gov.uk can answer any queries regarding the 
instrument. 

 

Page 88



 

 
 
Chief Finance Officers,    
Finance Officers,          
Chairs and Clerks of Schools Forums.  
  19 July 2012 
 
Dear Colleagues, 
 
Consultation on the School Finance regulations 2013 and additional 
grant conditions for the Dedicated Schools Grant 
 
Following the announcements on 26 March and 28 June 2012 about the 
reforms we are making to the school funding system in 2013-14, we are now 
consulting on the regulatory changes which give effect to the decisions set out 
in these announcements.  
 
The draft School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations 2013 are 
attached, together with additional grant conditions for the Dedicated Schools 
Grant (DSG). The finance regulations for the most part reflect the decisions 
already made on formula factors, maximum delegation, central expenditure 
and the Minimum Funding Guarantee. We are, however, consulting on how 
the funding for disadvantaged two year olds should best be brought into the 
early years single funding formula. The amendments to the grant conditions 
are necessary because DSG funds most Academies and non-maintained high 
needs providers.  
 
The consultation period will run through to 21 September 2012 and the 
intention is for the regulations to come into force by 1 January 2013.  Could 
you send your comments to EFA reformteam.funding@education.gsi.gov.uk 
By 21 September 2012 please? 
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
Keith Howkins, 
Team Leader, Funding Reform Team 
Education Funding Agency, Department for Education 
 
 

Agenda Item 17

Page 89



SUMMARY OF NEW FEATURES IN THE SCHOOL 
FINANCE REGULATIONS 2013 
 
Regulation 3 amends the 2012 school forum regulations to provide for 
maintained school members of schools forums to approve de-delegation 
proposals for their phase for maintained schools only. 
 
Regulation 6 extends the definition of the schools budget to include 
expenditure on young people aged 19 to 25 with learning difficulties. 
 
Regulation 8(2) specifies that expenditure on certain central services can 
only continue if the expenditure is already committed as a result of decisions 
made in a previous funding period.  
 
Regulation 8(3) specifies that planned expenditure on each service in the 
central schools block cannot exceed the planned expenditure on that line in 
the previous year.   
 
Regulation 8(4) specifies that the schools forum must approve the criteria on 
which any funding retained for pupil growth is to be allocated 
 
Regulation 8(5) specifies that schools forum approval is required for central 
schools and early years block items.  
 
Regulation 8(7) enables local authorities to apply to the Secretary of State to 
approve other central schools budget expenditure. This would only be 
considered in exceptional situations – for example, where an authority was 
using funding from outside the DSG for particular purposes such as universal 
free meals.  
 
Regulation 9 requires local authorities to consult all schools about changes to 
their school funding formula. The same applies to the early years formula, 
where there must be consultation with all providers. 
 
Regulation 11 requires budgets to be determined by 15th March for 
maintained schools and pupil referral units, and by 31st March for budgets 
issued under the early years formula.  
 
Regulation 11(2) provides for de-delegation for certain budgets.  
 
Regulation 12 sets out the powers of schools forum and the Secretary of 
State to authorise central schools and early years block expenditure and de-
delegation.  
 
Regulation 13 sets out the simplified requirements on the use of pupil 
numbers in the school formula, including the ability to use an October to 
January uplift for reception pupil numbers.  
 
Regulation 14 sets out the funding requirements of the place element for 

Page 90



special schools and pupil referral units; we are still considering issues relating 
to hospital schools so these are not mentioned in the draft regulations.  
 
Regulation 15 sets out how the mandatory deprivation factors in the schools 
and early years formulae may be calculated.  
 
Regulation 17 continues to allow differentiation between different types of 
early years providers.  
 
Regulations 18(1) to 18(3) allow authorities to use factors set out in schedule 
3 in their schools and early years formulae.  
 
Regulations 18(4) to 18(6) allow authorities to cap or scale back gains under 
the new formula using the same comparisons between years as in the MFG 
calculation, and applied consistently to all schools in the authority.  
 
Regulations 19(1) and 19(2) set out the MFG requirements for primary and 
secondary schools (in conjunction with schedule 4). 
 
Regulation 19(3) sets out the application of the MFG to the early years 
formula, which applies to base rates.  
 
Regulation 21 requires authorities to determine budgets for new schools, but 
only from their opening (any lead-in costs would need to be funded from a de-
delegated contingency).  
 
Regulation 24(1) provides that any redeterminations of budgets due to errors 
would take effect in the following funding period.  
 
Regulation 25 allows for authorities to apply to the Secretary of State to 
include exceptional premises factors in their formula, to exclude factors from 
MFG and to vary the basis of the pupil number count.  
 
Regulation 27 sets out that changes to schemes for financing schools must 
be approved by maintained school members of the schools forum.  
 
Schedule 2 sets out the services which can be retained centrally and is split 
between: 

• Part 1 – central services (where expenditure is restricted to what was 
planned in 2012-13) 

• Part 2 – central schools expenditure 
• Part 3 – central early years expenditure 
• Part 4 – high needs pupils 
• Part 5 – items which can be de-delegated for maintained schools 

 
Schedule 3 sets out the formula factors which may be used in the schools 
and early years formulae.  
 
Schedule 4 sets out the simplified MFG calculation for primary and secondary 
schools.  

Page 91



EARLY EDUCATION FUNDING 
 
Local authorities are required to manage funding for free early education for 
three and four year olds through the early years single funding formula 
(EYSFF). The EYSFF requirements are contained in the 2012 School Finance 
Regulations. These draft regulations for 2013 make the changes arising from 
the recent school funding consultations.  
 
As has previously been announced, funding for free early education for two 
year olds will be part of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) from 2013-14, 
alongside funding for early education for three and four year olds. The free 
entitlement to early education will be extended to 20% of two year olds from 
September 2013, and to 40% of two year olds from September 2014. 
 
Local authorities will be required to fund free early education for two year olds 
through the EYSFF, as they do for three and four year olds. This requirement 
will start when these regulations commence, 1 April 2013, and in advance of 
the commencement of the regulations which extend the free entitlement in 
September 2013. Extending the EYSFF to two year olds has a number of 
advantages: 
 

• It recognises the two year old entitlement as an extension of the 
three and four year old entitlement, and may be delivered by many 
of the same providers. Thus, it is only sensible it is funded in the 
same way.  

• The EYSFF requires authorities to work with providers to determine 
the cost of delivery and calculate fair funding rates accordingly. As 
part of this, we call on providers and authorities to work together 
and engage afresh in an open and honest way.  

• The EYSFF enables the Department more easily to collect data on 
funding rates (base rates and supplements) paid to providers.  This 
data is then more easily comparable across areas. Not using the 
EYSFF would make collecting comparable data more difficult.  

However, we are proposing adjustments to how the EYSFF operates for two 
year olds. These are: 
 

• To relax the requirement to have a mandatory deprivation supplement 
(regulation 15(6)). Local authorities would still be able to use a 
deprivation supplement if they wish, but making it mandatory in an 
already targeted entitlement does not seem necessary. 

 
• To relax the rules on place based funding to support capacity building. 

Currently, authorities must fund on the basis of participation except for 
children with SEN or children in need, where they can continue to fund 
on a place basis. We will extend this place-based approach for two 
year olds, to support LAs working with providers to increase capacity in 
advance of delivering the 20% and 40% entitlements (regulation 16(7)). 

Page 92



We anticipate this as a time-limited approach to support preparation for 
the entitlement, and not a permanent approach for funding two year old 
early education. 

 
We would welcome views on these adjustments – are they suitable and 
are there others we should consider? 
 
The availability of high quality early education places is of course critical to the 
success of the two year old entitlement. We expect LAs and providers to work 
together to improve the quality of provision on offer. As with provision for three 
and four year olds, carefully targeted funding can have a powerful role to play 
supporting increases in quality. The quality supplement in the EYSFF gives 
LAs a simple means to target funding at incentivising increases in quality in 
provision for two year olds. It would be possible through these regulations to 
require LAs to operate a mandatory quality supplement in their EYSFF for two 
year olds. Alternatively, all decisions about the design of the EYSFF for two 
year olds, including supplements, could remain a matter for local discretion. 
 
We would be grateful for views on whether to require a mandatory 
quality supplement in the EYSFF for two year olds. 
 

Page 93



ADDITIONAL GRANT CONDITIONS UNDER SECTIONS 
14-16 OF THE EDUCATION ACT 2002 
 
The School Standards and Framework Act 1998, under which the School 
Finance Regulations are made, was enacted before the introduction of 
Academies and of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).  Sections 14-16 of the 
Education Act 2002, under which the DSG is paid, enable the Secretary of 
State to make the grant on such terms as he considers appropriate, and to 
enforce such terms. 
 
The DSG covers pupils at most Academies (other than a few mostly early 
Academies which are not funded by way of the DSG and recoupment), and 
from 2013-14 will encompass also funding for high needs pupils and students 
aged 16-24. 
 
So far as Academies are concerned, they will from 2013-14 be funded using 
the local authority’s formula for the current financial year. Funding for 
Academies’ actual budget shares is recouped from local authorities, but as 
the pupils in Academies are taken into account in the initial DSG allocated to 
authorities, they are contributing to the remaining funding retained for central 
services.  The first three proposed additional grant conditions – (a) to (c) – 
reflect these considerations. 
 
Local authorities will be responsible from 2013-14 for funding of all high needs 
pupils and students, apart from the base funding of £10,000 per place (SEN) 
and £8,000 per place (Alternative Provision) in non-maintained institutions.  
This funding will be part of local authorities’ central spend and is covered in 
Part 4 of Schedule 2 to the Regulations. 
 
The remaining proposed additional grant conditions – (d) to (g) – relate to high 
needs pupils and students.  The first requires local authorities to treat different 
kinds of providers on an equal basis.  The second implements the equivalent 
to the MFG for maintained special schools and Special Academies.  The third 
and fourth cover transition to the new funding system for high needs. 
 
The following additional conditions of grant are imposed: 
 
(a) the authority must maintain a single formula for funding both maintained 
schools and Academies in its area; 
 
(b) in constructing the formula, the authority must take account of the 
circumstances of all Academies and maintained schools in its area;  
 
(c) in using funding held centrally within DSG, other than funding that has 
been de-delegated by maintained schools, the authority must treat maintained 
schools and Academies to which recoupment applies on an equivalent basis;  
 
(d) in making arrangements for funding young people with high needs, the  
authority must treat those placed in maintained provision, in Academies and 

Page 94



Free Schools, in the FE sector, and in non-maintained and independent 
provision on a fair and equivalent basis; 
 
(e) in deciding on top-up funding rates for the pupils it will place in special 
schools maintained by the Authority and Special Academies formerly 
maintained by the authority, the authority must ensure that the rates for each 
school are set no lower than at such a rate or rates that, if all the pupils in the 
school or Academy were placed by the authority, and the number of places 
remained the same in the two financial years, the school or Academy’s budget 
would reduce by no more than 1.5% in cash between 2012-13 and 2013-14;  
 
(f) when a pupil who would require top-up funding has already been placed in 
an institution by the authority at the time the new funding system for high 
needs pupils has introduced, the authority must enter into a contract with the 
institution to make such top-up payments until such time as the pupil has left 
the institution, or the contract is replaced by another.  When such a pupil is 
placed by the authority in an institution at a later date, the authority must 
likewise enter into such a contract; 
 
(g) when making top-up payments to institutions for high needs pupils, the 
authority must make the payments in a timely fashion on a basis agreed with 
the institution, which should be monthly unless otherwise agreed.   
 
 
 
 

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
       
Chairs and Clerks of Schools Forums.  
     

31 August 2012 
 
 

Dear Colleague,  

As you may recall from our previous announcements about the reformed 
funding system, we will have observer status on schools forums. We believe 
that this will enable us to support the local process and provide a national 
perspective. We have said that an EFA representative will not attend every 
meeting but may want to see how the Forum is working, and could be asked 
to attend specific meetings if members thought it helpful or if there were any 
concerns about the running or composition of the forum.   

It might be helpful if we clarify our role. This is to be impartial and ensure local 
authorities are compliant with the requirements of the new system and are 
behaving reasonably. 

 We have already explained in our previous announcements that we will not 
investigate general representations from individual schools that have lost 
funding under the new formula arrangements. What we will investigate is 
complaints from maintained schools or Academies that suggest they will be 
unreasonably funded as a result of the local authority not applying an 
allowable formula factor or not requesting an exceptional factor. We will also 
monitor the impact of the new formulae on different types of schools to inform 
future funding policy.  

We thought it would be helpful if forums had a named contact for each region. 
We already have service delivery teams in place but for more technical 
queries and issues, there is a Funding Reform team, which will be able to 
offer advice and attend where there are particularly complex issues. The team 
includes two experienced local authority secondees and already has close 
contact with local authorities through regional finance officer meetings. If you 
have any general queries about the reforms or if you would like someone from 
the EFA to attend because there are particular concerns of the nature set out 
above, please contact 
:reformteam.funding@education.gsi.gov.uk                  
 

Agenda Item 18

Page 97



The table below shows the contact in each team for each region.  

 
Region Service Delivery  

Team 
 Funding Reform Team  

London Sue Samson  Bev Pennekett  
SE Sue Samson  Bev Pennekett  
SW Sue Reekie  Bev Pennekett  
East Martin Lamb  Keith Howkins  
West Midlands Sue Reekie  Keith Howkins  
East Midlands Martin Lamb  Keith Howkins  
North-west Liz Butcher  Gavin Monument  
Yorkshire and 
Humberside 

Liz Butcher  Gavin Monument  

North-east Liz Butcher  Gavin  Monument  
 

As we move towards the implementation of the reformed system, we believe 
that you and your forums play a critical role in the scrutiny of local authority 
proposals. We hope that forum members will be actively engaged and we will 
be stressing to both maintained schools and Academies the importance of 
communicating with their representatives on their forum.  

 
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
Keith Howkins, 
Team Leader, Funding Reform Team 
Education Funding Agency, Department for Education 
 
Copied to  
Chief Finance Officers,    
Finance Officers, 

Page 98



e:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\7\7\9\ai00018977\$aqvmomup.doc 

WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM – 25th SEPTEMBER 2012 
 
WORK PLAN 
 
Meeting Date    
23rd January 2013 10th April 2013 

 
3rd July 2013 2nd October 2013 

   Elect Chair and Vice Chair 
Membership 

 
Schools Settlement 
Schools Budget 
Pupil Premium 
MFG Exceptions 

 
Budget update 
Funding Formula 2013-14 

 
Schools Outturn 
School Balances 
 

 
Final DSG calculation 2013-14 

 
JE and Harmonisation in 
Schools - update 

 
SEN plan 
Special School Surplus Places 

  
School Intervention Budget 
SEN / Home Tuition / LACES 

 
School Finance Regulations 

 
 

  
Draft School Finance 
Regulations 

Early Years Formula Review SEN Funding Formula 
Traded Services 

 Traded Services 
Academy Services 

 
Reserve date November 28th 2012 
 A

genda Item
 19

P
age 99



P
age 100

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	WHS Presentation July 2012

	4 Final DSG Calculation 2012-13
	5 Mainstream School Funding Consultation
	6 Funding for Pupils with High Needs Consultation
	Funding for Pupils with high needs consultation Sep2012 (2)

	7 School Redundancy Numbers and Costs
	8 School Intervention Budget
	9 Laces Update
	10 Home Education Service
	11 Funding High Needs Students aged 16-24 Update
	12 Provision of Insurance Services to Schools
	13 Breech of Central Expenditure Limit 2012-13
	14 Forum Membership Update
	15 Forum Training
	16 School Forum Regulations 2012, Guidance and Explanatory Memo
	The Schools Forums (England) Regulations 2012
	School Forum Regs 2012 Explanatory Memorandum

	17 Summary of School Finance Regulations 2013
	18 EFA Letter to Forums  with Contact Details
	19 Work Plan

